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MBHE

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS D

TERANEBEBESEATREEZ 224 - A& «  The following tables are summaries of the Group’s results, assets,

BELEZEE liabilities and equity for the past five financial years:
HET-RA=1+-HLEE
Year ended 31 December
20094 2008 20074 2006F 20055
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
ARBTR | ARBFT ARETET AREFT  ARBTR
E3 Results RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
HERA Revenue 615,391 777,807 834,608 681,617 455,410
He: Where:
MLCC £7% MLCC business 300,289 232,646 221,545 182,402 151,737
BEFHE () Mobile phones (Note) 315,102 545,161 609,774 484,428 235,844
BEFEITH Mobile phone components
(B:t) (Note) - - 3,289 14,787 67,829
HERR Cost of sales 529,227 (679,592) (701,641) (575,459) (385,663)
EH Gross profit 86,164 98,215 132,967 106,158 69,747
FEAE Profit for the year 19,703 11,317 68,433 48,139 19,121
UTATELD : attributable to:
-BARRESEA - Equity holders of the parent 19,703 1,317 68,433 48,176 19,826
- DERE — Minority interests - - - (37) (705)
FRERET Basic earnings per share 4.91li cents 28fllcents  2261lcents  16.11l cents 6.6l cents
Rt=ZB=t-H
As at 31 December
20094 2008F 200745 2006F 20055
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
ARBTR | ARBFT ARETET ARBTT  ARBFR
BERER Assets and liabilities RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BEE Total assets 600,239 677,357 623,102 438,236 458,031
BERE Total liabilities 190,144 288,694 235,027 213,112 211,140
@R Total equity 410,095 388,663 388,075 225,124 246,891
MTATELR : attributable to:
-BRAREEEA — Equity holders of the parent 410,095 388,663 388,075 204,947 246,677
-DHRE — Minority interests - - - 177 214
Wik : AEEABRHFRHIFCREZTTAF+A+THIA Note:  The mobile phones segment of the Group was discontinued upon the pass of the
BOWERENAS LBRAEEENRY I MEBR ordinary resolution to dispose of its entire equity interest in Eycom Technology
HRARRAN A RENERREBERRIEER - Co., Limited at the EGM held on 14 October, 2009.
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Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,

PO Box 2681,

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,

Cayman Islands
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Director

Mr. Chen Weirong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Liao Jie

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Shuang Mei (re-designated in October 2009)
Mr. Chen Hao

Mr. Cheng Wusheng

Mr. Li Heqiu

Mr. Zhang Zhilin

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus

Mr. Pan Wei

Mr. Liu Huanbin

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus (Chairman)
Mr. Pan Wei

Mr. Liu Huanbin

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Liu Huanbin (Chairman)

Mr. Chen Weirong

Ms. Shuang Mei

Mr. Pan Wei

Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Liu Huanbin (Chairman)

Mr. Chen Weirong

Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus

REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
PO Box 2681,

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands
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HSBC Trustee (Cayman) Limited
P.O. Box 484

HSBC House

68 West Bay Road

Grand Cayman
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Cayman Islands
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HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

8th Floor, Tien Chu Commercial Building

173-174 Gloucester Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC
EYANG Building

No. 3 Qimin Street

No. 2 Langshan Road, North Area

Hi-tech Industrial Park

Nanshan District

Shenzhen, the PRC

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Chen Weirong
Mr. Leung Wai Chung

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Leung Wai Chung cra

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

HSBC Trustee (Cayman) Limited

P.O. Box 484

HSBC House

68 West Bay Road

Grand Cayman

KY1-1186

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Construction Bank, Luohu Branch
Shenzhen Ping An Bank, Fuhua Branch
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Hang Seng Bank Limited

PRC LAWYER
Win & Sun Law Firm

AS TO CAYMAN ISLANDS LAW
Conyers Dill & Pearman

HONG KONG LAWYER
Michael Li & Co.

AUDITOR
Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

PROPERTY VALUER
Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited

STOCK CODE
00117

COMPANY WEDSITE
http://www.szeyang.com
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND CHAIRMAN
Mr. Chen Weirong (FR{E%%), aged 51, is an Executive Director and
Chairman of the Board, as well as Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. He is in charge of the corporate strategy, planning and
overall development. He is also the founder of the Group. Mr. Chen
graduated from ZEF T EF7(South China Institute of Technology*,
now known as #EEJIE T K&, South China University of Technology*)
in 1982 with a bachelor’s degree in engineering. Upon graduation,
Mr. Chen started his career as a technician in EEEERKMNHAERA
7] (Konka Group Company Limited*) in 1982, a major consumer
electronics manufacturing and distribution enterprise in the PRC, and
became its managing director in 1994 until 2001. In 1996, Mr. Chen
was elected as “Outstanding Young Entrepreneur of Shenzhen”, in
1997, he was awarded the “National ‘May 1st’ Labour Medal” (& &
[fi—] %&)#EE) and in 1998, he was elected as a representative
in the Standing Committee of the 9th National People’s Congress.
Mr. Chen has been the Chairman of the Group since November 2001.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Liao Jie (J2#), aged 42, is an Executive Director of the Company.
He is also the general manager of MLCC division and is in charge
of the strategic planning and development of MLCC business of the
Group. Mr. Liao graduated from £ ep 38 T K & (Huazhong University
of Science and Technology*, now known as %/ &} £ X £ ) with a
bachelor’s degree in engineering in June 1990. He obtained Master
of Science specializing in electronics components from # /1 32 T K
& (Huazhong University of Science and Technology*, now known as
#= R B K 2 ) in 1993. Upon graduation, Mr. Liao joined Konka
Group Company Limited as a manager, responsible for supervising
the quality control of electronics raw materials. He was then
transferred to the sales division to take charge of the sales in Eastern
China. Mr. Liao joined the Group in October 2001 after he left Konka
Group Company Limited.

* For identification purposes only

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Shuang Mei (1§), aged 42, was re-designated as Non-
executive Director from Executive Director of the Company in
October 2009 following the disposal of the Company’s entire equity
interest in Shenzhen Eycom Technology Co., Limited*. She is now
the general manager of Shenzhen Eycom Technology Co., Ltd. Ms.
Shuang graduated from &R A2 (Nanjing University*) in 1991 with
a bachelor’s degree in arts and started her career as a journalist for
two newspapers until 1999. In 2000, she obtained a master’'s degree
in business administration from the University of Lancaster, and joined
the Group in 2001.

Mr. Chen Hao (FR%), aged 44, is a Non-executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Chen graduated from ZFE/FIE T K2 (Huazhong
University of Science and Technology*, now known as i} K E2)
with a bachelor’'s degree in computer science in 1989. He has over 16
years of experience in the information technology industry, especially
in business management and operations, and information technology
applications/services. Mr. Chen joined Legend Group in 1992. He
was the founder and the general manager of Legend Advanced
System Ltd.. During his tenure, he was responsible for strategic
management and business implementation. Mr. Chen founded Legend
Capital, a venture capital firm, in 2001, and has served as head of
investment ever since. He is currently a director of the company.
He is responsible for overall control and coordination of investment
activities at Legend Capital. Mr. Chan is also a director of a number of
information technology companies, including X & &IFT & T A R A
A) (Worksoft Creative Software Tech., Ltd.*) (NYSE: VIT), Spreadtrust
Communications, Inc. (NASDAQ: SPRD) and Jt R AERE BT A
[R/A "] (Beijing Kaitone Information Technologies Co., Ltd.*). He also
serves as a director in a number of investment companies. He was
appointed as a Non-executive Director of the Company in April 2007.

Mr. Cheng Wusheng (2R 4 ), aged 42, is a Non-executive Director
of the Company. He was regional manager of Konka Group Company
Limited and deputy general manager of BR 7§ EE £ & ¥ B R 2 &)
(Shaanxi Konka Electronic Co., Ltd.*) from October 1990 to June
1996. Through these positions, he was responsible for sales and
promotion of products. Mr. Cheng is currently director of ;& I & &
¥ 8 5 AR A 7 (Shenzhen Jinmaixin Trading Co., Ltd.*) and & 3|
TEEDE E X AR R A (Shenzhen Nanhua Yaxing Industrial Co.,
Ltd.*), both of which are trading companies. He has shareholding
interests in the Company through his wholly-owned company WU
SHENG Management Limited. He was appointed as a Non-executive

Director of the Company in April 2007.

* For identification purposes only

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
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Mr. Li Heqgiu ( 2= & ¥k ), aged 47, is a Non-executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Li has been directorof B Mk ZE R TR AR
7~ &) (Dongguan Yongtai Construction and Engineering Co., Ltd.*)
since 25 March 2002 to 1 November 2005 and general manager
from 25 March 2002 to present. Through these positions, he was
responsible for decision making in construction projects and
operation management. He is currently director of R ZE T Kk Z& B %
B R A a) (Dongguan Yongtai Industrial Co., Ltd.*), and ¥ 3¢ 7 7K BE
B ¥ K & AR A 7 (Dongguan Yonglong Industrial Investment Co.,
Ltd.*). Mr. Li became a shareholder of the Company in June 2005.
Mr. Li has shareholding interests in the Company through his wholly-
owned company HEQ Management Limited. He was appointed as a
Non-executive Director of the Company in April 2007.

Mr. Zhang Zhilin ( 5% 75 #K ), aged 59, is a Non-executive Director of the
Company. He was the factory director of /& 3 32 #7 [ & B 48 A (5 7 [
[% & #% ¥ (Shanghai Pudong Heging Town Xiangyang Village Xiangyang
Electroplating Factory*) from February 1981 to November 1985 and was
also the factory director of &8 5 3£ & 8 B 3 f i (Shanghai Pudong
Meiling Plastics Factory*) from December 1985 to January 1994. As
factory director, he was responsible for production operation and human
resource management. Mr. Zhang is currently the director of )& 2= &)
£ % 5 R A & (Shanghai Huali Packing Co., Ltd.*), /8 E[SEHEA
A PR A & (Shanghai Meiyang Precision Moulding Co., Ltd.*), + /& &[5
& % 5 PR A 7 (Shanghai Huiyang Industrial Co., Ltd.*), /8 %= [ /& &
R 22 B R 2 7 (Shanghai Taihui LCD Co., Ltd.*), and E/§ B R =E
%8 B % 5 ® (Shanghai Pudong Meiling Plastics Factory*), all of which
are manufacturing companies. He was appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company in April 2007.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Pan Wei (7&1£), aged 53, is an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company. Mr. Pan graduated from 1t 5§ £ (Beijing Institute
of Steel*, now known as 1t REHZAE, University of Science and
Technology Beijing*) with a bachelor’'s degree in physical chemistry
in 1982. He obtained a master’'s degree in engineering and doctoral
degree in engineering from Nagoya University in 1987 and 1990
respectively. He is currently a professor in the Department of Materials
Science and Engineering, Tsinghua University. Mr. Pan specialises in
research and educational projects, including thermal barrier materials,
transparent ceramic materials, nanomaterials and devices and other
conductive materials. He was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company in April 2007.

* For identification purposes only
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Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus (5f2£77), aged 45, is an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since April 2007. Mr. Chu is also
the chairman of the audit committee of the Board. Mr. Chu has over
20 years of experience in corporate finance, audit, accounting and
taxation. Mr. Chu is the company secretary of Hong Long Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock Code: 1383), responsible for corporate finance, financial
reporting and compliance and company secretarial matters. Mr. Chu
is also an executive director of Chinese People Holdings Company
Limited (#F R AR A 7)) (stock code: 681), and an independent
non-executive director of Bright Prosperous Holdings Limited (& &%
R BRAR]) (stock code: 723) and Huayu Expressway Group Limited
(FEESEREEABR AT (stock code: 01823), all are companies listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. During the period from
September 2005 to March 2007 Mr. Chu was the executive director of
Mastermind Capital Limited (Z{Z&&AFR A F]), during the relevant
period known as Haywood Investments Limited, a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 905). Mr. Chu
graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a Master Degree
in Business Administration in 1998. Mr. Chu is a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Chu is also an
associate member of both the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators and the Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries.

Mr. Liu Huanbin (Z244#), aged 68, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Liu graduated from ZEf T 2% (South
China Institute of Technology*, now known as # g8 T K& South
China University of Technology*) in 1965 with a bachelor's degree
in engineering. He holds professorship in chemical engineering in
#FEFIE T K2 (South China University of Technology*), and was later
promoted to the principal of the university for the tenure from May
1995 to September 2003. In 2001, Mr. Liu was awarded as a foreign
academician by Academy of Engineering of Russia. He is currently
a professor in the South China University of Technology. He was
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
in April 2007.

* For identification purposes only
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Xu Chuncheng ( % 45 & ), aged 48, is the chief financial officer
of the Company. He is responsible for overall financial and strategic
planning of the Group. Mr. Xu was appointed as the deputy general
manager of MLCC division of the Group in October 2009. Mr. Xu
graduated from 8 ® &I # 2 Bz (Hunan Normal College*, now
known as 8 3 A & &K 2 , Hunan Normal University*) in 1982 with
a bachelor’s degree in science. He obtained a master’'s degree in
quantitative economics from £ ¥ #| & 2 7 (Changsha Railway
College*, now known as A g K £ Central South University*) in 1987
and further obtained a doctoral degree in international finance from
the Graduate School of the People’s Bank of China in 1996. From
1987 to 1992, he was the supervisor of research division of The
People’s Bank of China, Hunan Branch where he was responsible
for the research of macro- economics and finance. From 1994 to
1998, he was the deputy general manager of international business
and merchant banking divisions under China Merchants Bank,
Headquarters where he was responsible for the management of
foreign exchange policies and international finance business. Prior
to joining the Group in August 2006, Mr. Xu worked in Konka Group
and Konka Telecommunications Technology as deputy chief financial
officer and chief financial officer respectively where he was in charge
of strategic corporate financial planning and international trading from
1998 to 2006.

* For identification purposes only
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| hereby present the annual financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2009 on behalf of the Board of the
Company.

In 2009, the severe impact of the financial crisis on the real economy
persisted and major developed economies were still in recession. As
the extremely unsteady overall global demand for electronic products
substantially shortened the orders placing cycle, the Group’s MLCC
business, which primarily focused on export, inevitably experienced
relatively large pressure. However, thanks to the effective economic
stimulus policies of the PRC government, the demand for MLCC in
Mainland China increased due to the persistent robust growth in
demand forelectronic products in Mainland China. Leveraging on the
collaboration and endeavors across the Group and also by enhancing
the core competitiveness of the Company’s products, capturing the
opportunities arising from the change in the market development, and
shifting its market focus to Mainland China, the Group’s sales revenue
and profit from its MLCC business in 2009 experienced substantial
growth in spite of the market downturn.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

During the year, the Group’s sales revenue from MLCC was
RMB300.3 million, representing an increase of 29.1% over that of
2008. The Group’s profit before tax from continuing operations for
the period grew significantly by 40.5%. Sales revenue from mobile
phones dropped substantially by 42.2% as compared to 2008.
Upon shareholders’ approval at the Company’s general meeting, the
Group disposed of the mobile phone business of the Company on
14 October 2009. As at the date of the disposal, the loss before tax
of the mobile phone business increased to approximately RMB20.4
million from RMB8.9 million last year.

Profit attributable to shareholders amounted to RMB19.7 million,
representing an increase of 74.1% over that of 2008. Earnings per
share increased to RMB4.9 cents this year from RMB2.8 cents last
year.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommends, subject to the approval of the shareholders
of the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting, the
payment of a final cash dividend of HK$2.6 cents (equivalent to
approximately RMB2.29 cents) per ordinary share for the year ended
31 December 2009 (2008: nil).
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

MLCC BUSINESS

Currently, MLCC business is the principal activity of the Group. With
the increased sales effort in the Mainland China market, the Group
placed equal emphasis on both domestic and overseas customers
of its MLCC business and effectively dispersed its market risk. The
adverse impact on the Group’s MLCC business from the global
economic downturn was considerably offset by the significant
increase in the demand for MLCC products from customers in
Mainland China, while that from European and American customers
declined. Meanwhile, the Group sharpened its competitive edge by
enhancing the technological innovation capabilities and optimizing
the product mix of its MLCC business. In 2009, the Group’s MLCC
business achieved more desirable results, with increases in sales
revenue and net profit after tax despite the adverse market condition.

MOBILE PHONE BUSINESS

Mobile phone business is a discontinued operation of the Group.
In 2009, loss of the mobile phone business further increased as
a result of excessive competition in the mobile phone market in
Mainland China. Upon shareholders’ approval at the Company’s
general meeting, the Group disposed of the Company’s mobile phone
business on 14 October 2009. As at the date of the disposal, the
mobile phone business recorded a loss of RMB20.4 million.

OUTLOOK

The economy of the PRC is expected to grow rapidly in 2010. In light
of the substantial accumulative exchange reserve, the excessive
domestic liquidity, the severe asset bubble condition and the
anticipated significant increase in material cost in the PRC, coupled
with the gradual recovery of major economies including the United
States, Europe and Japan, the export of products from Mainland
China will be stimulated considerably and Renminbi will appreciate to
a certain extent against the world’s major currencies. This will create
certain adverse effects on the Group’s sales profit. However, given
that the Group has already established an extensive and efficient
sales network in Mainland China, the sales revenue denominated
in Renminbi will represent a much higher proportion. As such, the
impact of Renminbi appreciation on the Company will be migitated
effectively.

APPRECIATION

| would also like to take this opportunity to thank all of our customers
and shareholders for their continuing support, our directors for their
guidance and insights, as well as our staff for their dedication and
efforts.

Chairman
Chen Weirong

16 April 2010
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BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2009, the overall global demand for electronic products was yet
to be recovered from the economic recession sustained in such
major developed economies as Europe, the U.S. and Japan. The
Group’s MLCC business, an export oriented segment, was inevitably
under the pressure of diminishing demand from foreign buyers.
Facilitated by the economic stimulation policies such as the “Home
Appliances Subsidy for Rural Villages” and “Appliances Trade-in”
launched by the Government, the demand for electronic products
in the PRC maintained a strong growth, which in turn drove the local
demand for MLCC. The management of the Company seized the
market development trend and effectively mitigated the damage
to the Company caused by such pervasive global economic
recession through its technological advancement in MLCC business,
optimization of product portfolio as well as increasing the proportion
of PRC clients in its portfolio. In 2009, the Group’s revenue from
continuing operations for the period increased by 29%. Excluding the
impact on the disposal of mobile business which recorded a one-off
gain of 9.7 million, its profit before tax from continuing operations for
the period increased by 13.1%.

As reckless competition intensified in the PRC mobile industry, the
Company’s mobile business had recorded a substantial loss. In
order to maximize the return to investors, upon approval in a general
meeting of the Company, the mobile business has been disposed
of by the Group on 14 October 2009. Up to that date, the mobile
business recorded a loss of RMB20.4 million (2008: a loss of RMB9.7
million).

The profit after tax attributable to the owners of the parent was
RMB19.7 million in 2009, representing an increase of 74.1% over that
of 2008.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

In 2010, the economic recovery in the U.S. will gather momentum,
slowly while the two major economies in Europe and Japan are also
expected to walk out from the recession. When the stock-out process
in the three major economies is over, the demand for electronic
products will gradually pick up. In particular, at the same time, the
upgrade and replacement of electronic products will become a driver
of the upcoming strong demand for MLCC.

For the contribution to a balanced and stable development of the
national economy in the PRC, the Central Government has launched
a series of economic policies to encourage domestic consumption.
It is expected that these economic policies will further boost the
consumption of electronics and digital products and expand the
demand for MLCC. With the extensive application of digital electronic
products, network products including LCD TVs, set-top boxes (T8 &)
and ADSL have gained their access in millions of households. The
demand for MLCC will keep growing.
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In the coming year, it is expected that RMB against the world’s major
currencies will still have a certain extent of appreciation. Meanwhile,
the challenges experienced in the economic recession prompted
corporations to be more cautious about investment, purchase,
production and sales planning. The appropriate level of inventories
will never return to that before the recession. This situation will bring
challenges to the Group’s operation. However, the Group can still
manage to obtain the feedback of MLCC demand information faster
than its competitors in other areas as the Group is based in the Pearl
River Delta, one of the world’s major electronic products processing
centers. The management believes that it will bring more opportunities
for the Group to develop its MLCC business and improve its results.

Technological expertises in the Group’s MLCC and advanced MLCC
products have been the key competitive strengths of the Group to
outperform its local competitors. The management is optimistic about
the prospect of the sales of MLCC.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Since the mobile business had been disposed of by the Group on
14 October 2009, the analysis set out below only relates to the MLCC
business, being the only continuing operations of the Company,
unless otherwise stated.

REVENUE

The revenue of the Group’'s MLCC business for 2009 was
approximately RMB300.3 million, representing a 29.1% increase over
that of 2008. This was mainly because the Group’s management had
put a great deal of efforts in the development on the Mainland China
market, as well as increasing the proportion of the Mainland China
market, which experienced a relatively insignificant impact in the
financial crisis, to the Company’s sales market.

GROSS PROFIT

Gross profit of the Group’s MLCC business for 2009 was RMB73.2
million in 2009, representing an increase of approximately 4.2%
from that of 2008. The increase was mainly due to the growth in the
revenue from MLCC sales.

GROSS MARGIN

The gross margin of the Group’s MLCC business for 2009 was 24.4%,
representing a 5.8% decrease from the gross margin of 30.2% in
2008. This was mainly due to the impact of the financial crisis, which
resulted in a drop in the average selling price of MLCC.
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OTHER INCOME AND GAIN

Other income and gain of the Group for 2009 were RMB15.4 million,
representing a substantial increase as compared to that of 2008.
This was mainly due to the disposal of SZ Eycom, the Group’s wholly-
owned subsidiary, resulting in an increase in investment gain of
RMB9.7 million.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION COSTS

The selling and distribution costs of the Group for 2009 were RMB9.6
million, representing a 16.3% increase over that of 2008. This was
mainly due to the increasing input in the market for the increase in
market share and the development of the Mainland China market.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

The administrative expenses of the Group for 2009 were RMB20.0
million, representing an 8% decrease from that of 2008. This was
mainly due to enhancement of management efficiency, resulting in a
reduction in expenses and efficient management of costs.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT COSTS

The research and development costs of the Group for 2009 were
RMBG6.2 million, representing a 133% surge over that of 2008. This
was mainly due to the upgrade of the core competitiveness of the
Company'’s products, as well as a greater research and development
engagement at this moment in the entire series of hi-tech MLCC
products (with 0201 specification) and products with large capacity.

OTHER EXPENSES

Other expenses of the Group for 2009 were RMB8.2 million,
representing a 35.0% decrease from that of 2008. This was mainly
due to: 1) the management of the Company enhanced their
management skills that the effect of the foreign exchange rate on
the Company’s business had been well under control, resulting in
a substantial reduction in the loss on foreign exchange; and 2) the
share option expense had significantly dropped.

FINANCIAL COSTS

The financial costs of the Group for 2009 were RMB1.7 million,
representing a RMBO0.7 million increase over that of 2008. This was
mainly due to an increase in the average balance of the Company’s
capital loans.
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income tax expense of the Group for 2009 amounted to approximately
RMB3.1 million, representing a decrease of RMB6.7 million from
that of 2008. The effective tax rates of the Group for the two years
ended 31 December 2008 and 2009 were approximately 31.7%
and 7.2%, respectively. The substantial decrease in the effective
tax rate was mainly due to the following reason: SZ Eyang obtained
its high technology enterprise accreditation on 16 December 2008.
According to the PRC New Corporate Income Tax Law effective on
1 January 2008, SZ Eyang is subject to a preferential corporate tax
rate of 15% and additional 50% of its research and development
expense incurred can be deducted from its taxable income. However,
the New Corporate Income Tax Law did not explicitly stipulate
whether branches of a high technology enterprise are subject to the
preferential tax rate of 15%, and require that the additional deduction
of research and development expense shall be reviewed and
approved by the tax bureau. Accordingly, the branch of SZ Eyang in
Dongguan would be subject to a corporate tax rate of 25% and SZ
Eyang would not additionally deduct its research and development
expense from its taxable income until the final settlement of corporate
income tax for 2008 has been completed. In June 2009, SZ Eyang
and its branch in Dongguan completed the final settlement of
corporate income tax for 2008. According to the final settlement
results, the tax bureau agreed that SZ Eyang and its branch could
enjoy the above tax preferences. As such, the over-provision for
corporate income tax of RMB3.7 million in 2008 was reversed during
the year.

GEARING RATIO

The Group monitors its capital through gearing ratio, being net
liabilities divided by capital and net liabilities. Net liabilities are
determined as the aggregate of interest-bearing bank loans, trade
and bills payables and other payables (excluding accruals and
deferred income within one year) less cash and cash equivalent.
Capital refers to the equity attributable to the owners of the parent. As
at 31 December 2008 and 2009, the gearing ratio of the Group was
approximately 21.1% and 22.6% respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The net carrying amount as at 31 December 2009 was RMB245.2
million, representing a decrease of RMB12.5 million from that of
2008. The decrease was due to the combined impact of the following
factors: 1. the property, plant and equipment of RMB6.3 million
reclassified to investments properties as a result of the lease of
certain unused properties by the Group in the year; 2. the decrease in
production, office and other equipment by RMB4.3 million due to the
disposal of SZ Eycom, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, from
the Group on 14 October 2009; 3. the depreciation of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment of approximately RMB24.9 million for
the period; and 4. the addition of MLCC manufacturing equipment of
approximately RMB23.1 million in 2009 as the Group began to acquire
a large amount of MLCC manufacturing equipment since 2008 in
response to the increasing market demand for MLCC products.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties for 2009 amounted to RMB16.4
million, representing an increase of RMB6.3 million over that of 2008.
This was mainly due to the increased demand for leasing certain
unused properties of the Group as Mainland China was among the
first economies to recover from the global financial crisis.

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

As at 31 December 2009, the Group’s other intangible assets,
mainly SAP management software, amounted to approximately
RMB1.5 million. In order to enhance the Group’s management
quality and efficiency, the Group began to prepare for the upgrading
of its existing ERP management software to the advanced SAP
management software in 2008. The SAP management software was
put into use in 2009.

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

The trade and bills receivables of the Group were mainly the amount
due from the Group’s MLCC customers. As at 31 December 2009, the
net book values of trade and bills receivables were RMB126.3 million,
representing an increase of 32% over that of 2008. The increase in
trade and bills receivables was mainly attributable to: 1. the increase
in revenue of the Group by 29% in 2009 over that of 2008; 2. the
extension of credit period of trade receivables granted to certain
customers with sound reputation who have established long-term
relationship with the Group.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

At 31 December 2009, prepayments, deposits and other receivables
of the Group were RMB8.5 million, representing a decrease of
RMB10.1 million from that of 2008. The reduction was mainly due to
the disposal of the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiary, SZ Eycom, from
the Group on 14 October 2009.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGES BANK
DEPOSITS

At 31 December 2009, cash and cash equivalents and pledges bank
deposits of the Group were RMB61.7 million, representing a decrease
of RMB98.1 million from that of 2008. The reduction was mainly due to
the disposal of the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiary, SZ Eycom, from
the Group on 14 October 2009. Excluding the factor of the disposal
of SZ Eycom, cash and cash equivalents and pledged bank deposits
increased.

The cash and cash equivalents and pledged bank deposits of SZ
Eycom were mainly used for its own daily operations, instead of
the Group’s MLCC business. As a result, the reduction in cash and
cash equivalents and pledged bank deposits of the Group arising
from the disposal of SZ Eycom from the Group had no impact on the
operations of the Group’s MLCC business.
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TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

As at 31 December 2009, the net carrying amount of the Group’s trade
and bills payables was RMB82.1 million, representing a decrease of
RMB79.1 million from that of 2008. The decrease in trade and bills
payables was mainly due to the disposal of SZ Eycom from the Group.
Excluding the factor of SZ Eycom, the net carrying amount of the
Group’s trade and bills payables increased by RMB21.5 million from
that of 2008. This was mainly because the Group had fully utilized its
production capacity in 2009, resulting in a higher production capacity
over that of 2008. The expansion in production capacity led to a
corresponding growth in the purchase of raw materials.

DEFERRED INCOME, ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES
As at 31 December 2009, deferred income, accruals and other
payables of the Group were RMB26.6 million, representing a
decrease of RMB24.2 million from that of 2008. The decrease in
deferred income, accruals and other payables was mainly due to the
disposal of SZ Eycom from the Group.

PROVISIONS

The provisions were mainly to ensure of services after-sales of the
products sold by SZ Eycom during the warranty period. Since SZ
Eycom has been disposed of by the Group on 14 October 2009,
provisions made by SZ Eycom would no longer be reflected in the
Group’s accounts.

DUE TO RELATED PARTIES

The Group’s amounts due to related parties mainly comprises the
trade payable by SZ Eycom to Dongguan Guangtong Enterprise Co.,
Ltd. ("DG Guangtong”) and Dongguan Deyang Industrial Co., Ltd.
(“DG Deyang”). As SZ Eycom has been disposed of by the Group on
14 October 2009, the amounts due to DG Guangtong and DG Deyang
by SZ Eycom were not reflected in the Group’s accounts.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS

On 31 December 2009, the Group had outstanding Interest-bearing
bank loans of RMB63.9 million, representing an increase of RMB21.9
milllion over that of 2008, mainly used to boost the production and
sales of MLCC and maintain the Company’s liquidity.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2009, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.

COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2009, the capital commitments of the Group were
approximately RMB19.6 million, representing an increase of RMB8.4
million over that of 2008, which was mainly due to the increase in the
Group’s purchase of equipment which had not yet been delivered.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL

STRUCTURE
Net current asset

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had net current assets of
approximately RMB130.9 million, including current assets of

o

RMB313.3 million and current liabilities of RMB182.4 million.

HenEg Cash flows
BZ12A31HLEE
For the year ended 31 December
—EENF —EENEF
2009 2008
ARBEER | AREKBEETRT
RMB million RMB million
SRR AL G )H Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities
e 58 (45.4) 67.5
KEEHREMIBELFE  Net cash outflow from investing activities (71.4) (120.3)
BMEFBRACRHE)E  Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activities
ReFHE 46.2 (24.0)
FRMIRE RIS EEYW Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 61.7 131.7

R2009F12HA31H » AEEMBE S MRS EE
) 7 R EEEI2008F 12 A1 AR A AR #T705H
Bl EXTBRAA:

1) REEFHEENEREARKALS4
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BITRE
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R ARBEE S RIERRERE -
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As at 31 December 2009, the Group’s remaining balance of cash
and cash equivalents decreased by RMB70.5 million from that of
31 December 2008. It was mainly due to:

1) The Group’s cash outflow from operating activities of RMB45.4
million, which was mainly due to an increase in the payment
for the purchase of raw materials and trade receivables;

2) The Group’s net cash outflow from investing activities
of RMB71.4 million, which was mainly due to an amount
of approximately RMB34.1 million used in purchasing
equipments and intangible assets, and a net cash outflow of
RMB37.3 million from the disposal of SZ Eycom;

3) Net cash inflow from financing activities of RMB46.2 million,
which was due to the increase in bank loans.

Banking facilities

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had aggregate banking facilities
of approximately RMB276.1 million, of which approximately RMB212.3
million had not been utilized. The facilities were secured by property,
plant and equipment of the Group with a net amount of approximately
RMB89.9 million and time deposit of with a net amount of US0.7
million (equivalent to approximately RMB4.7 million), and a guarantee
provided by SZ Eycom, a related party.
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Foreign currency risk

In 2009, the Group’s sales and purchase were mainly denominated
in RMB, US dollars and Hong Kong dollars. The Group’s foreign
currencies account was basically balanced and its foreign currencies
risk was relatively small.

Staff

For the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group had a total of 1,371
staff, whose remunerations and benefits are determined based on the
market, state policies and individual performance.
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The Company has adopted the applicable code provisions of the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) stipulated
in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) to safe guard the values of the Company and
promote the interests of stakeholders of the Company. The Board from
time to time assesses the Company'’s practice of and compliance with
the CG code to ensure a high standard of performance, transparency
and accountability.

The Board has reviewed the corporate governance practices of the
Company and considers that the Company has complied with the
CG Code during the year ended 31 December 2009, save for the
exception that is stated and explained below.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board and directors’ background

The Board is responsible for all major strategic planning of the
Company, review on and approval of all major management and
operation policies so as to achieve the Group’s preset objectives.
There were 10 members in the Board comprising 2 executives
directors, 5 non-executive directors and 3 independent non-executive
directors.

The executive directors of the Board participate in the Group’s daily
operation and management, monitoring the performance of the
senior management with reference to the approved planning and
objectives. Ms. Shuang Mei, who had been in charge of the Group’s
former wholly owned subsidiary Shenzhen Eycom Technology Co.,
Limited (*Eycom”), was re-designated from executive director to
non-executive director upon the disposal of the Company’s entire
equity interest in Eycom in October 2009. After the disposal, Ms.
Shuang Mei remains as the general manager of Eycom and her
re-designation as non-executive director of the Company follows
the good practice of corporate governance already in place in the
Group. The non-executive directors, although not involved in the
Group’s daily operation, provide the Group with valuable suggestions
and constructive ideas with regard to the Group’s strategies and
management. The three independent non-executive directors bring
in independent judgment and advices for the purpose of check
and balance. One of the three independent non-executive directors
possesses the necessary professional qualification and expertise in
accounting and financial management and serves as the chairman of
the Company’s audit committee.
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The biographical details of the directors are set out on pages 6 to 10
of this annual report. The composition of the Board and the Committees
of the Board are given below:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chen Weirong (Chairman) (Chief Executive Officer and
member of Remuneration Committee)

Mr. Liao Jie

Non-Executive Directors:

Ms. Shuang Mei (member of Remuneration Committee)
Mr. Cheng Wusheng

Mr. Li Heqiu

Mr. Zhang Zhilin

Mr. Chen Hao

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus (Chairman of Audit Committee and
member of Remuneration Committee)

Mr. Liu Huanbin (Chairman of both Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee and member of Audit Committee)

Mr. Pan Wei (member of Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee)

There is no financial, business, family or other material or relevant
relationship among the directors. Pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules each of the three independent non-executive directors
has submitted to the Company an annual written confirmation of
his independence and the Company still considers all independent
non-executive directors to be independent.

Responsibilities

The tasks of the Board include setting main objectives of the
Group and devising strategic planning for the development of the
Group’s business. The Board also defines the corporate values
and standards to ensure that the management and all other
staff carry out their works in good faith and in the best interest of
shareholders. Significant company’s activities like acquisition and
disposal transactions, connected transactions, investments and
capital expenditures are thoroughly discussed in the Board and
other committee meetings with contribution from the independent
non-executive directors.

Duties of daily operation and execution of the Group’s plans
have been delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and senior
management and the Board constantly supervises the management
and monitors their performance in meeting the preset goals and
objectives.
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Appointments, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The Articles of Association of the Company clearly lay out the
proper procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of directors. It also requires that at least one-third of the
directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation at each
annual general meeting provided that every director shall be subject
to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every three
years. A retiring director shall be eligible for re-election at the annual
general meeting. All non-executive directors (including independent
non-executive directors) of the Company have been appointed for a
term of three years from the date of their appointments. A nomination
committee has been set up in 2008 to perform the role and duty of
nominating competent candidates to join the Board. The Board from
time to time reviews the composition of the Board to ensure members
of the Board have sufficient expertise, knowledge and experience in
directing the business of the Group.

Board Committees

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors, namely, Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus (Chairman of the Audit
Committee), Mr. Pan Wei and Mr. Liu Huanbin. The main duties of the
Committee are to review the financial statements and financial and
accounting policies of the Company and oversee the Company'’s
financial reporting system and internal control procedures.

During the year ended 31 December 2009 the Audit Committee
met twice and reviewed the financial results and reports, financial
reporting and compliance procedures, report of internal audit
department on the Company’s internal control and risk management
review and the re-appointment of the external auditors. The
Committee has not taken a different view from the Board regarding
the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the external
auditors. The Group’s annual results for the year ended 31 December
2009 have been discussed, reviewed and approved by the Audit
Committee.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was set up on 30 November 2007,
constituted by two executive directors, namely Mr. Chen Weirong
and Ms. Shuang Mei and three independent non-executive directors,
namely, Mr. Liu Huanbin (Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Pan Wei
and Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on and approving the remuneration
policies and structure and remuneration packages of the directors
and senior management. The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no director
or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration packages.

The Remuneration Committee reviewed the remuneration of the
directors and senior management with reference to the skill,
knowledge, experience and the tasks assigned and also to the
individual performance and the overall profitability of the Company. In
determining the remuneration package, the Remuneration Committee
also obtained reports, surveys and relevant information from
external source for the competitive level of remuneration and market
trend for the directors and senior management. The Remuneration
Committee regards that the current directors’ fee to the directors
and remuneration to the senior management for their duties and
responsibilities undertaken are commensurate with the market.

Nomination Committee

In April 2008 the Company set up the nomination committee whose
major duties are to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors according to the Articles
of Association. The Nomination Committee reviews the composition
of the Board whenever necessary to meet the business demands,
opportunities and challenges and to comply with the laws and
regulations. The Nomination Committee will select and evaluate the
balance of skills, qualification, knowledge and experience of the
candidate to the directorship as may be required by the Company
from time to time by such means as the Company may deems fit.
The Nomination Committee shall consider the candidate from a
wide range of backgrounds, on his/her merits and against objective
criteria set out by the Board and taking into consideration his/her
time devoted to the position and independence as independent
non-executive directors.

All newly appointed director will be provided an induction so as to
ensure that he/she has appropriate understanding of the business
and operations of the Group and of the responsibilities and
obligations under the Listing Rules and other relevant regulatory
requirements.
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Board Meeting

Regular board meetings are held for directors to discuss and
determine the strategies of the Group, monitor the execution of plans,
review the Group’s business performance and financial reporting
as well as all other material matters. Notice of the Board meeting is
given at 14 days in advance to all directors, and the agenda of all
related document are prepared and dispatched to all directors by
the company secretary at least 3 days before the meeting to ensure
all directors have sufficient information and relevant material when
preparing for the meetings. The company secretary is responsible
for preparing and keeping minutes of all board and committee
meetings. All directors have full access to the advice and services
of the company secretary to ensure that the Board procedures and

REEe HMEZE@NIEXREZES 704 all applicable rules and regulations are followed. Details of directors’
T attendance at the meetings of Board, Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee during the year ended
31 December 2009 are set out below:
HE EBRH
BE-ZZANFE+-A=+—-HLEE
Attendance/Number of meetings
for the year ended 31 December 2009
FMEES REZBEE
EENE EE® BEREER Remuneration Nomination
Name of Directors Board Audit Committee Committee Committee
R E B S A& 5/6 18 A 1/1 1/1
Mr. Chen Weirong N/A
el (5 Gum 5/6 A5 1/1 i A
Ms. Shuang Mei N/A N/A
B2 o 5/6 i R A iE A N iE A
Mr. Liao Jie N/A N/A N/A
BRAELE 4/6 A5 A T iE A A~ iE A
Mr. Cheng Wusheng N/A N/A N/A
FEIREE 2/6 T iE R I iE A T iE A
Mr. Li Heqiu N/A N/A N/A
R A MRS A 1/6 A5 N3 i A
Mr. Zhang Zhilin N/A N/A N/A
BR O 5T 1/6 58 A T iE B TiE A
Mr. Chen Hao N/A N/A N/A
EE R E 5/6 2/2 1/1 TE A
Mr. Pan Wei N/A
Bl 4/6 2/2 11 11
Mr. Liu Huanbin
REERFEE 3/6 2/2 1/1 0/1

Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code states that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. The Company does not
have a separate chairman and chief Executive officer and Mr. Chen
Weirong, currently holds both positions. The Board believes that
vesting the roles of both Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in
the same person provides the Group with strong and consistent
leadership, allows for more effective planning and execution of
long-term business strategies and enhances the efficiency of
decision-making process in response to the changing environment.

The three independent non-executive directors provide the Board
with independent judgment and views from different perspectives
and ensure that the interests of concerned parties can be taken
into account and proper processes are followed to avoid possible
conflict of interests. The Board therefore believes that the Company
already has a strong corporate governance structure in place with
adequate check and balances. The Board from time to time reviews
the effectiveness and adequacy of the Group’s corporate governance
structure and performance so as to assess whether any changes are
necessary in the future.

Model Code for Dealing In Securities by Directors

The Company has adopted a code of conduct governing securities
transactions by directors on terms no less exacting than that required
under the Model Code for Securities Transactions by directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as contained in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has been made of each director of
the Board, all directors confirm that they have fully complied with the
Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2009.

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND AUDIT

Financial reporting

The Board, with the assistance by the Group’s Chief Financial Officer,
are responsible for overseeing the preparation of accounts for each
financial period with a view to ensuring such accounts give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and
cash flow for that period. The Company’s accounts are prepared in
accordance with all relevant statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards and the Board reviews those accounting
policies as selected and applied to ensure that appropriate judgment
and estimates be made in a prudent and reasonable manner.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 39 to 40 of this annual report.
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Auditors’ Remuneration

Ernst & Young are primarily responsible for providing audit services in
connection with the annual consolidated financial statements. During
the year, the total remuneration payable to the Company’s external
auditor amounted to RMB1.10 million, with breakdown as follows:

ef ENER
Fee paid/payable

2 BUR 7

Audit services

FEZBR

Non-audit services

ARB110BE T
RMB1.10 million
{5

N

nil

HET ARME1A0EE T
Total RMB1.10 million
A 0 R 4 Internal Control

RARBRF—ETHERERIZWARERLLE  The Company maintains a comprehensive and effective internal
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control system on income and capital and revenue expenditures.
As part of internal audit, the Company has its own internal audit
department and maintained a system of internal control, with manuals
guiding internal controls on business operation. The Board reviews
internal control system to ensure sufficient resources and manpower
are allocated to maintain the effective operation of the internal control
system.

The internal audit manager, independent to the Company’s daily
operations, reports directly to the Audit Committee and Chief
Executive Officer and regularly conducts audits of all major operations
of the Group in order to provide the Board with sufficient assurance
that the internal control system is efficient and effective.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has adopted the policy of effective communication with
shareholders for promoting higher transparency of the Company’s
operation activities and greater investors’ understanding of the
Company’s business. The Company’s website contains up-to-date
information on the Company’s business developments. The practice
of timely disclosures of information with high degree of integrity is
consistently observed to allow shareholders and any other parties
concerned to make judgment.

Given the fact that AGM is the most important platform for
shareholders to express their views and ask questions about the
performance and policies of the Company, notices and circulars
regarding the AGM and other general meetings are given in well
advance to ensure that shareholders have sufficient time and
information to prepare for the meetings.
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The Board is pleased to present the report for the year ended
31 December 2009, together with its audited financial statements.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
the activities of its subsidiaries are set in note 19 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2009 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
page 41.

The Board did not declare any interim dividend in respect of the
year ended 31 December 2009 (2008: nil). The Board recommends,
subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Company at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, the payment of a final dividend
of HK$2.6 cents per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December
2009 (2008: nil). The final dividend will be paid on or about
30 June 2010 to shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company as at the close of business on Monday,
31 May 2010.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 27 May 2010 to Monday, 31 May 2010 (both days
inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares will be effected.

In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and to qualify for the proposed final dividend,
unregistered holders of shares of the Company should lodge all share
transfers, accompanied by the relevant share certificates, with the
Company'’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday,
26 May 2010.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Pursuant to the Cayman Islands Companies Law (as revised) and
subject to the articles of association of the Company, the share
premium may be distributed to its shareholders provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to
be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its liabilities
due in the course of ordinary business. In the opinion of the directors,
the Company’s reserves available for distribution as at 31 December
2009 were approximately RMB49,747,000 (2008: RMB 61,905,000).
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment and fixed
assets of the Company are set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in share capital of the Company are set out in
note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS
The current directors of the Company during the year and as of the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Chen Weirong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Liao Jie

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Shuang Mei (re-designated in October. 2009)
Mr. Chen Hao

Mr. Cheng Wusheng

Mr. Li Heqiu

Mr. Zhang Zhilin

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus

Mr. Pan Wei

Mr. Liu Huanbin

In accordance with article 87(1) of the articles of association of the
Company, one-third of the directors for the time being shall retire from
office by rotation at every annual general meeting of the Company. A
retiring director shall be eligible for re-election. Mr. Li Heqgiu, Mr. Chu
Kin Wang, Peleus and Mr. Liu Huanbin shall retire from their offices as
Directors by rotation at the forthcoming AGM. Save and except Mr. Li
Hequi who will not seek re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting (the “2010 AGM”) in order to devote more time to his own
business, all the other aforesaid retiring directors, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election.

STATUS OF INDEPENDENT OF NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
directors an annual written confirmation of his independence persuant
to Rules 3.13 of the Listing Rules and it still considers all independent
non-executive directors to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Executive Directors

Each executive director entered into the service contract with the
Company on 30 November 2007 for a term of 3 years from the Listing
Date, renewable thereafter until termination by giving no less than
3 months’ written notice to the other party or pursuant to the terms of
the service contract.

Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors
All non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors
have entered into a letter of engagement with the Company for a term
of 3 years from the Listing Date. The engagement shall comply with
the directors’ retirement and rotation provisions in accordance with
the Company'’s articles of association.

Save as disclosed above, no director has a service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is expiring within one year
or determinable by the employer within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation). The Company has
no service contract with the directors with a term of more than 3 years
or not determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the Company’s directors is determined
based on their respective terms of service agreement (if any). The
directors’ fee is reviewed annually and approved and authorized
by the shareholders at the annual general meeting. Details of
remuneration paid and to be paid to the Company’s directors for the
financial year ended 31 December 2009 are set out in note 8 to the
financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the connected transactions as stated in the report, no
contracts of significance relating to the business of the Group to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The principles and practices of corporate governance of the
Company is set out under the section of “Corporate Governance
Report” on page 21 to 27.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands where the
Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders of the
Company.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographies of directors and senior management are set out on
page 6 to page 10 in the report.

DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS

At 31 December 2009, the directors’ interests and short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”)) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code
were as follows:

REAF/
AREED
L $
AAl
xAT/ RE/#E Approximate
HEEEER AR EHE RIEE percentage of
Company/ Amount of R4 M 2%+ interest in
Name of 24 11 share capital/ Interests in the Company/
EEpg associated Capacity/ registered underlying we associated
Name of Director Corporation Nature of interest capital held shares* Total  corporations
(%)
BRERLE /NG WEZHERER "
Mr. Chen Weirong Company Interest of controlled 262,020,000 1,400,000 263,420,000 64.96%
Corporations
Rigut ARA ARERE @
Ms. Shuang Mei Company Corporate interest 9,160,000 1,300,000 10,460,000 2.58%
BREE ARA AREE O
Mr. Liao Jie Company Corporate interest 7,160,000 1,300,000 8,460,000 2.09%
BRELE /NG AREE
Mr. Cheng Wusheng Company Corporate interest 16,160,000 - 16,160,000 3.99%
FEREE ARA AREE O
Mr. Li Heqiu Company Corporate interest © 20,800,000 - 20,800,000 5.13%
REMEE ARA AREE ©
Mr. Zhang Zhilin Company Corporate interest © 23,120,000 - 23,120,000 5.70%
* PHEBRMDOERZRERZSN2008F1 220 R 1E * Interests in the underlying shares represent interests in share options granted on

720074F 11 A 30 B FT £k 4 &) & AR RE =T &I P tH &0 8
Rig BHAEREBERENFBECHEREARESE
[FERRAEAT &I — &7 -

FBRR(EEARAT
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22 January 2008 pursuant to the Share Option Scheme adopted on 30 November
2007, further details of the granted options are set out in the section “Share
Option Scheme” of this report.
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Notes:

(1

Mr. Chen Weirong legally owns 100% of the issued share capital of Eversharp
Management Limited, which in turn legally owns 42.71% of the issued share
capital of EY SHINE Management Limited (“EY Shine”). Mr. Chen Weirong also
legally owns 100% of the issued share capital of Everbright Management Limited,
which owns 36.01% of the issued share capital of EY Shine. EY Shine legally owns
60.31% of EY Ocean. For the purposes of Part XV of the SFO, Mr. Chen Weirong
is deemed to be interested in all the shares held by EY Ocean.

Ms. Shuang Mei legally owns 100% of the issued share capital of HE-YANG
Management Limited, which in turn legally owns 5.79% of the issued share
capital of EY Shine. EY Shine legally owns 60.31% of EY Ocean. Ms. Shuang Mei
therefore is indirectly interested in approximately 9,160,000 shares.

Mr. Liao Jie legally owns 100% of the issued share capital of LJ Management
Limited, which in turn legally owns 4.53% of the issued share capital of EY Shine.
EY Shine legally owns 60.31% of EY Ocean. Mr. Liao Jie therefore is indirectly
interested in approximately 7,160,000 shares.

Mr. Cheng Wusheng legally owns 100% of the issued share capital of WUSHENG
Management Limited, which in turn legally owns 6.17% of the issued share
capital of EY Ocean. Mr. Cheng Wusheng therefore is indirectly interested in
approximately 16,160,000 shares.

Mr. Li Heqiu legally owns 100% of the issued share capital of HEQ Management
Limited, which own 7.94% of the issued share capital of EY Ocean. Mr. Li Heqiu
therefore is indirectly interested in approximately 20,800,000 shares.

Mr. Zhang Zhilin legally owns 100% of the issued share capital of ZHILIN
Management Limited, which in turn legally owns 8.82% of the issued share capital
of EY Ocean. Mr. Zhang Zhilin therefore is indirectly interested in approximately
23,120,000 shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2009, none of the
directors had registered an interest or a short position in the shares,
or underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations that was required to be recorded under Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code as at the end of the reporting

period.

*  For identification purposes only
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2009, the persons who have an interest or short
position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or who are, directly or
indirectly interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class
of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general

meetings of any other member of the Company are as follows:

BERE
BHAEDL
BHEE Approximate
25 =20 Number of percentage of
Name Capacity Shares share holding
BERBEAA
EY Ocean Beneficial owner 262,020,000 64.62%
R —REZEH AR M S
EY SHINE Management Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 262,020,000 64.62%
SR AR OF -
Eversharp Management Limited Interest of a controlled corporation @ 262,020,000 64.62%
Sl b2 INETE: OF ¥ i
Everbright Management Limited Interest of a controlled corporation © 262,020,000 64.62%
(FERES R — RS A R s
Chen Weirong Interest of a controlled corporation ) 262,020,000 64.62%
EnEBA
Legend New-Tech Investment Beneficial owner 26,920,000 6.64%
Limited
A — R A A e ©
Right Lane Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 26,920,000 6.64%
BB R AR A A Sl ke INETEEOF - ¥ A o
(Legend Holding Limited*) Interest of a controlled corporation/ 26,920,000 6.64%
Beneficiary of trusts ©
TEMZEEAEEE R — R H R A A ©
REBR AT
(Chinese Academy of Sciences Interest of a controlled corporation © 26,920,000 6.64%
Holdings Co., Ltd.)
BEERERAFBIFRS Bt I NETEE o F i
(Employees’ Shareholding Society of  Interest of a controlled corporation © 26,920,000 6.64%

Legend Holding Limited*)

* ERES

FBRR(EEARAT
—BRAETH

*  For identification purposes only
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Limited £5 5 89 FT G I 19 2
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BITRAMEZ - BEIER AR AR A %A Right
Lane Limited B # 17l AN50% * MMEAMEAEEE
%5 ¥ A Right Lane Limited & % 17 I% 48 2 T~ 50% °
Liu Chuanzhi fE AR X BB R R AWM ST A
FHAEBBIERBERAG D EITRA2D%  REFE
BREBEIERE R A A H =T A A Right Lane
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Notes:

EY SHINE Management Limited (“EY Shine”) is interested in approximately
60.31% of the issued capital of EY Ocean and is entitled to exercise or control the
exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at its general meeting. EY Shine
is therefore deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by EY Ocean.

Eversharp Management Limited (“Eversharp”) is interested in approximately
42.71% of the issued capital of EY Shine and is entitled to exercise or control the
exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at its general meeting. Eversharp
is therefore deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by EY Ocean.

Everbright Management Limited (“Everbright”) is interested in approximately
36.01% of the issued capital of EY Shine and is entitled to exercise or control
the exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at its general meeting.
Everbright is therefore deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by EY
Ocean.

Mr. Chen Weirong legally owns the entire issued share capital of Eversharp
and the entire issued share capital of Everbright. Mr. Chen Weirong is therefore
deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by EY Ocean.

Right Lane Limited legally owns the entire issued share capital of Legend New-
Tech Investment Limited. Right Lane Limited is therefore deemed to be interested
in all the Shares held by Legend New-Tech Investment Limited.

Bt 48 422 f% A R 2 & (Legend Holding Limited*) is interested in the entire issued
share capital of Right Lane Limited. B 8 ¥ f& & BR A 7] (Legend Holding
Limited*) legally owns 50% of the issued share capital of Right Lane Limited and
also owns the remaining 50% the issued share capital of Right Lane Limited as a
beneficiary of two trusts. Liu Chuanzhi is holding 25% of the issued share capital
of Right Lane Limited as a trustee for and on behalf of Legend Holding Limited.
Zhang Zuxiang is holding 25% of the issued share capital of Right Lane Limited
as a trustee for and on behalf of Legend Holding Limited. B 8 3% i& & [R 2 &)
(Legend Holding Limited*) is owned as to 65% by MBI RIS EEEELLE
fR A &) (Chinese Academy of Sciences Holdings Co., Ltd.*) and 35% by B 48 1%
f% A R A 7 B T # I8 & (Employees’ Shareholding Society of Legend Holding
Limited™*).

Save as disclosed above, so far as known to the directors or Chief
Executive of the Company, as at 31 December 2009, no other
person who was directly or indirectly interested in 10% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in
all circumstances at general meetings of any other member of the
Company, or being any person who is required to disclose his interest
or short position in the Shares and underlying shares of the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO).
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Summaries of the share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
adopted by all shareholders of the Company on 30 November 2007
are set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

Particulars of the movement of options granted under the Share
Option Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2009 were as
follows:

20095 20095
1818 12A318
o R AT B REH REH REE REE  HAE
LERSRE Outstanding Ry iR Rl jzgy  Outstanding
fEEER ERFTEE asat Granted Exercised Forfeited Cancelled as at S
Name or category of AR Exercise price 1 January during during during during 31 December  Exercise
eligible participants Date of grant per share 2009 theperiod  theperiod  theperiod the period 2009 period
Ez
Directors
RERLE 2008517228 1052ET 1,400,000 - - - - 1400000 ()
Mr. Chen Weirong 22 January 2008 HK$1.052 Note(a)
RiERL 20085 1A 228 10527 1,300,000 - - - - 1300000 FizE(a)
Ms. Shuang Mei 22 January 2008 HK$1.052 Note(a)
BREE 2008514228 10528 1,300,000 - - - - 1300000  HiE(a)
Mr. Liao Jie 22 January 2008 HK$1.052 Note(a)
i
Sub-total 4,000,000 _ 4,000,000
BREBAR
EERHL
RERSEE(LE) 2008517228 10527 29,000,000 - - 12,600,000 - 16400000 i (a)
Senior management,
Employees and
Other qualifying
participants (in aggregate) 22 January 2008 HK$1.052 Note(a)
fay
Total 33,000,000 - - 12,600,000 - 20400,000
(a) ISR ERE N30 (a) Please refer to note 30 to the financial statements for details.
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ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the above share option scheme, at no time during the year
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or the holding companies
of the Company or any subsidiaries of its holdings companies a
party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
The Company’s directors had no interests in any business that may
compete with the Group’s business.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, the Company has
confirmed that it has maintained a sufficient public float in the market
as at the date of the report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed shares of the Company during the year ended
31 December 2009.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the year, the Company had no contract entered into in respect
of the management or administration of the overall business or any
material business.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to the Shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the
Company’s securities.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the percentage of purchases from the major suppliers
of the Group to total purchases of the Group is as follow:

Percentage of purchases from

the largest supplier of the Group to total purchases: 24.43%
Percentage of purchases from
top five suppliers of the Group to total purchases 69.74%

No directors nor their associates have interests in the above
suppliers.

During the year, the percentage of sales from the major customers of
the Group to the total sales of goods and services of the Group is as

follows:

Percentage of sales from the largest customer of

the Group to total sales of goods and services 6.86%
Goods and services sold by the Group
to its top five customers during the year 24.36%

None of the directors, nor their associates or any shareholders
holding more than 5% of the share capital of the Company has an
interest in the customers referred to above.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Supply Agreement with Guangtong

Terms of the supply agreement

On 30 November 2007, Eycom entered into a supply agreement
with Guangtong, whereby Guangtong agreed to manufacture and
supply mobile phone casings to Eycom from time to time on normal
commercial terms which were no less favorable than those available
from Independent Third Parties. The supply agreement was effective
from the Listing Date to 31 December 2009.

Proposed annual caps

The directors estimate that the annual value of the transactions under
the supply agreement with Guangtong for each of the years ending
31 December 2009 are as follows:

BE+-A=+—HBLEE

For the year ended 31 December

—BELF —BENF —EENF
2007 2008 2009
ARBEET ARBAET AR¥KABTT
RMB million RMB million RMB million
HA S AT N 0 R 17 R Supply agreement
with Guangtong 20.0 33.3 41.7

HZE2009F 12A31B L FE » AEE MK BIER
ENBRHFERINZSBOEARKCOEE T
(20084 : ARM199FHETT)

HRIEBEZHE

Bz Rk

MR2009F9 A48 - FINIF B FIE B E
JEBEADETLTEERZ - NEH -
FIFHZERFRYERERIFERRINED
HEMLCCE R UREHZ - HEHZ

MLCC #FE W s A I A A Rl Ak i B R YIE
BRAEY EF(PREBLIIENITES)RE
FHEEWZEREMICCHERZE ZGRTIIE—R
FHEEKRAERARB —BEEEEBRBES
I o FHiFAEWE A MLCCHEHZBE L
MR TEEAFERERS - HEHBZER
MLCCHERZ s  ZmTE LRBTEAARE
3,5672,32870 - REA B DL E25% AE - 1R
B LETRBIE14A341E - B SEBETH
WMERNEZHTE °

FBRR(EEARAT
—BRAETH

For the year ended 31 December 2009, the purchases of mobile
phone casings by the Group from Guangtong was approximately
RMB6.0 million (2008: RMB19.9 million).

Agreements with SZ Eycom

Terms of the agreemenst

On 4 September 2009, SZ Eyang entered into new leasing
agreements with SZ Eycom with respect to the premises occupied
by SZ Eycom. On the same date SZ Eyang and SZ Eycom entered
a purchase agreement with respect to the supply of MLCC products
by SZ Eyang to SZ Eycom. Both the new leasing agreements and
MLCC supply agreement would take effect on the completion of
disposal of SZ Eycom by the Company. The directors, including
the independent non-executive directors, were of the view that the
terms of the new leasing agreements and MLCC supply agreement
were in normal commercial terms and in ordinary and usual course
of business of the Company. The above leasing agreements and
MLCC supply agreement fell under the definition of continuous
connected transactions pursuant to the Listing Rules and maximum
aggregate annual caps of the leasing agreements and MLCC
supply agreement was RMB3,572,328, which was below 2.5% of the
applicable percentage ratios and therefore subject to reporting and
announcement requirements only in accordance with Rule 14A.34 of
the Listing Rules.
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Proposed annual caps

BE+-A=1+—HLEE

For the year ended 31 December

—EEAE —E-2F —E——F

2009 2010 2011

ARBFTT ARBF T ARBTT

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

New leasing agreements S W& 216.7 866.9 866.9
MLCC supply agreement MLCC f F& 15 7% 743.9 2,705.4 2,447.7
Total 48 =t 960.6 3,572.3 3,314.6

MR2009F 12 A31H » BREFHEME I H 2
TRERFIEBRBEMICCHERZETZ
XEBE DR A ARE181,000T & AR
657,0007T (20084 : @A) °

RIE LR RANE14AZ7ER - N RBIBILIEHTT
EXCEANLBEHERHARRAERD
WEASEN —RABEHBR NET (DR
BE-MRIEEREGEREE R (i) RIFEZK
B 17 & IR SR AT o

ARBZZEEINFER M 2 5 EBIER S ()
ERARRBZEZTSHE () IREBEFEER
) B 13 2 R BOE T ¢ R (i) 3F % B 78 1Y 2007 £
RANMBNBERERMIIIOEERNNOER -
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BERRARBER ZMBRBRZERFRELR26.3
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As at 31 December 2009, the total rental paid under the new leasing
agreements and total purchase by SZ Eycom under the MLCC
supply agreement was approximately RMB181,000 and RMB657,000
respectively (2008: N/A).

Pursuant to the Rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules the independent
non-executive directors of the Company have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions and are of the opinion that the
above continuing connected transactions have been (i) carried out in
the usual and ordinary course of business of the Group; (ii) conducted
on normal commercial terms; and (iii) entered into in accordance with
the terms of the respective agreements.

The Company’s auditor has also confirmed that the above-stated
continuing connected transactions (i) have been approved by the
Board of the Company; (ii) have been entered into on terms of the
agreement of relevant transactions; and (iii) have not exceeded any
caps as set out in the prospectus dated 11 December 2007.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE IPO OF THE COMPANY

The net balance of proceeds from the initial public offering, amounting
to approximately HK$26.3 million, had been used in MLCC related
capital expenditures.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year are audited by Ernst & Young.
The auditor shall retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting, but
has agreed to offer themselves for re-appointment. According to the
advice of the Audit Committee, a resolution will be proposed to the
forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint Ernst & Young as
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Chen Weirong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 April 2010
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To the shareholders of EYANG Holdings (Group) Co., Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of EYANG Holdings
(Group) Co., Limited set out on pages 41 to 120, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position
as at 31 December 2009, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates
that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December
2009 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

18th Floor

Two International Finance Centre

8 Finance Street, Central, Hong Kong
16 April 2010
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HEZZZNF+=H=+—HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2009

o

Wi sk —EENE ZEENE
Notes 2009 2008
AR®TR AREFL
RMB’000 RMB’000
(BEi)
(Restated)
BELEER CONTINUING OPERATIONS
LON REVENUE 5 300,289 232,646
HERK Cost of sales (227,046) (162,369)
EF Gross profit 73,243 70,277
H e A R Wz Other income and gain 5 15,396 6,597
HE RS EKA Selling and distribution costs (9,627) (8,279)
THREHR Administrative expenses (19,741) (21,618)
B 9T R B 8 R AR Research and development costs 7 (6,168) (2,647)
HA R Other expenses (8,172) (12,577)
BMERA Finance costs 6 (1,743) (1,019)
RELSEEBRNKRH PROFIT BEFORE TAX FROM
BRI CONTINUING OPERATIONS 7 43,188 30,734
FTE R Income tax expense 10 (3,075) (9,754)
FEREEBENEERNE PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM
CONTINUING OPERATIONS 40,113 20,980
RIEREERK DISCONTINUED OPERATION
— RIS EERNEEZEIE  Loss for the year from a discontinued operation 12 (20,410) (9,663)
FERE PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 19,703 11,317
Hih2mk s OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
BEBIEBNELES Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations 34 (1,847)
FEX2EAKRZAE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 19,737 9,470
AT ALEEFE : Profit attributable to:
[SINGIEFPN Owners of the parent 11 19,703 11,317
AT ATREEZENZESE :  Total comprehensive income attributable to:
BAREAA Owners of the parent 11 19,737 9,470
BATEERRESEA EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
BHEERER ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT 14
BERREE Basic and diluted
- FEFE ~ For profit for the year 4.9 {licents 2.8 fllicents
— B EREERE T ~ For profit from continuing operations 9.91licents 5.2 fllicents

FRRR RS FERNMBRERM T IRE -

41

Details of the dividend proposed for the year are disclosed in note 13 to the financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R-ZZEFEHE+ = A=+—H 31 December 2009

e

Bt “EEAE —EEN\E
Notes 2009 2008
AR®T AR®ET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ERBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
ME - BE K Property, plant and equipment 15 245,247 257,730
BREME Investment properties 16 16,383 10,345
THAERMHE Land lease prepayments 17 21,805 22,293
EMENEE Other intangible assets 18 1,541 -
EERIEEAE Deferred tax assets 20 1,930 1,039
ERBEELE Total non-current assets 286,906 291,407
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
rE Inventories 21 113,849 111,552
EWEFRIRERER Trade and bills receivables 22 126,346 95,533
BNTUE  HWEREMEWE  Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 23 8,492 18,616
TEeBmIA Derivative financial instruments - 454
BeRBLEEY Cash and cash equivalents 24 35,823 109,925
EEBRITER Pledged bank deposits 24 25,840 49,870
FEMBEE S HRE Due from related parties 36(3) 2,983 -
TEAELE Total current assets 313,333 385,950
REBAE CURRENT LIABILITIES
ERESETREMER Trade and bills payables 25 82,138 161,235
A - BB A K% H i B3 Deferred income, accruals and other payables 26 26,610 50,825
& 14 78 Tax payable 9,687 12,526
B Provisions - 3,699
HERTER Interest-bearing bank loans 28 63,851 41,993
FER RS Dividends payable 171 171
eI E 7 A Due to related parties 36(3) - 12,210
nEEERE Total current liabilities 182,457 282,659
REEERE NET CURRENT ASSETS 130,876 103,291
EEBERTBER TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 417782 394,698
ERBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
BRI A Deferred income 27 4,274 5,080
EERIEER Deferred tax liabilities 20 3,413 955
FRBAFERE Total non-current liabilities 7687 6,035
BEFHE Net assets 410,095 388,663
i EQUITY
BAREAEAEERES Equity attributable to owners of the parent
BETRA Issued capital 29 3,824 3,824
i Reserves 32(a) 396,998 384,839
BRRERE Proposed final dividend 13 9,273 -
AR Total equity 410,095 388,663
BR1Z & fcg
Chen Weirong Shuang Mei
e EE
Director Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HEZZZNF+ A =1+—HIFE Year ended 31 December 2009

Attributable to owners of the parent

o

BLAREEAELER
R BhRE EXE® Bk
B&f BER fifE fife AHRE
K& Share B4R Share  Exchange B#BA  Proposed aER
Issued  premium  Contributed option fluctuation ~ Retained final Total
capital account surplus reserve reserve profits  dividend equity
ARETT AREFT AREBTR ARETT ARETT AR%®Tn ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(F3r29) (P30)
(note 29) (note 30)
2008517 1A At 1 January 2008 3773 98,262 200,713 - 251 64,801 20,275 388,075
FERENKER Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - (1.847) 1317 - 9,470
NERBRERERETHRY Issuance of new shares upon exercise
of the over-allotment option 51 6,395 - - - - - 6,446
NTERFERE Final 2007 dividend - - - - - - 02 (2027)
BaitEBRERE (D) Equity-settled share option
arrangements (note 30) - - - 4947 - - - 4947
BiRERE Share options cancelled - - - (168) - 168 - -
#2008 128318 R2009E1F 18 At31 December 2008 and
1 January 2009 3,824 104,657 200,713" 4779 (1,59)* 76,286 - 388,663
EERANRAE Total comprehensive income for the year - - - R 19,703 - 19,737
HE-ENEAT Disposal of a subsidiary - - (1774) - - 1774 - -
BREERRERH () Equity-settled share option
arrangements (note 30) - - - 169 - - 169
BRMERE Share options forfeited - - - (1,677) - 1677 - -
FE2000F E REEIRE (M3H13)  Proposed 2009 final dividend (note 13) - - - - - (9273) 9273 -
#2009%128318 At 31 December 2009 3,824 104,657 198,939* 4,797 (1,562)* 90,167 9,273 410,095
* ZERBREOEREMBRARP 2EEaHE These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of RMB396,998,000

A R #5396,998,0007T (2008 F : A R ¥ 384,839,000

JL) e

FHERGBE)ERAF

“ETAEER

(2008: RMB384,839,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BHEZZZNF+=H=1+—HI%E Year ended 31 December 2009

e

Bt 5 —EENF —ZTENEF
Notes 2009 2008
AR®T R ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RETHEECREESRE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
BREATFIE,(EE) Profit/(loss) before tax
REBELLER From continuing operations 43,188 30,734
RERIEREER From a discontinued operation 12 (20,410) (8,905)
R Adjustments for:
A A AR Finance costs 6/12 2,174 2,353
RAT A B A Bank interest income (816) (2,845)
HEWME - BE&ZE Loss on disposal of items of property,

BEZEE plant and equipment 38 43
HE—WMB AR ZUWE  Gainon disposal of a subsidiary 5/31 (9,707) -
N ERE - OFHE Fair value gains, net:

PTHETHE- Tﬁ =] Derivative instruments — transactions

HHR®ZR not qualifying as hedges - (454)
e Depreciation 25,264 19,394
T AR EFE N PR IE Y Amortisation of land lease prepayments 488 296
| EESE Amortisation of intangible assets 172 -
EWE SRIRE Impairment of trade receivables 5,320 1,316
HIHGTERE Provisions against slow-moving inventories 6,858 1,498
BaEERERERS Equity-settled share option expense 30 1,695 4,947
54,264 48,377
FEZEM Increase in inventories (49,812) (37,583)
FEWE SEEZMD (i) Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables (81,432) 20,435
AR FE - Re REA Decrease/(increase) in prepayments,
FEUFRL D (48 ) deposits and other receivables 8,891 (3,788)
JE W B 5 5 IR R D Decrease in amounts due from
related parties (2,983) -
ENESERNLENZEE  Increase in trade and bills payables
o 39,467 23,016
EEWA -« B RER Increase in deferred income,
H At FE A FOE N accruals and other payables 1,028 12,077
B, CRd) Increase/(decrease) in provisions 810 (910)
& RE i 5 FR B 40 (Gl 4>) Increase/(decrease) in amounts
due to related parties (11,308) 10,819
B RE WA R D Decrease in deferred income (806) (2,915)
®wEE /(FA)7H]4%  Cash generated from/(used in) operations (41,881) 69,528
A E Interest received 817 1,804
B85 R Overseas taxes paid (4,346) (3,810)
gestEiES (FTA)~2  Netcash flows from/(used in)
REREFE operating activities (45,410) 67,522

FBRR(EEARAT
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HEZZZNF+ A =1+—HIFE Year ended 31 December 2009

Bt 5 —EENF —EENE
Notes 2009 2008
AR®T R ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
wmESESEE (FTA)Z  Netcash flows from/(used in)
REmeFHE operating activities (45,410) 67,522
REEFHELE2HEAKRE  CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
BEYYE  BWENREEE Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment (32,319) (108,190)
4 T B Additions to land lease prepayments - (12,119)
Ho b & EE A N Additions to other intangible assets (1,713) -
HE—EHBAR Disposal of a subsidiary 31 (37,349) -
HREZHFM2EELRE  Netcash flows used in investing activities
FEE (71,381) (120,309)
MEEFHELE2HEAKE  CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
BT 2 Fri5 3018 Proceeds from issue of shares - 6,639
FHREX Listing expenses - (193)
St BIRITER New interest-bearing bank loans 101,789 95,214
BEFTESRITER Repayment of interest-bearing bank loans (79,931) (93,701)
EENEAFC) Interest paid (3,234) (2,353)
EENLE5S Dividends paid - (20,275)
BRI ITFEZURL (38 ) Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank deposits 26,591 (12,290)
EBABRAZIHEBEE  Decrease in bank deposits with original
3EAZRITFEF R maturity of over three months when acquired 1,000 2,964
BEEBEE (A2
REREFRE Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities 46,215 (23,995)
HeRBeEEYZ NET DECREASE IN CASH AND
B FEE CASH EQUIVALENTS (70,576) (76,782)
SNEFER B8 2 %8 - % Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net 33 (1,847)
FYvEERELEEY  Cashand cash equivalents at beginning of year 131,705 210,334
FREZRAERESE CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
ZEY AT END OF YEAR 61,162 131,705
BeRREEEY ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
ERRD T CASH EQUIVALENTS
R A BB NKRTIEEZ  Cashand cash equivalents as stated
ReELBASEEY in the consolidated statement
of financial position 24 35,823 109,925
FEARRAIHA Bank deposits with original maturity of
FR3EAZRITER less than three months when acquired 24 25,339 21,780
NiEEIREemE%YIEY  Cashand cash equivalents as stated
HeELRHEEEBY in the consolidated statement of cash flows 61,162 131,705
FHEEREBBR AR EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R-ZZEFEHE+ = A=+—H 31 December 2009

e

B &% —EEhE —TENF
Notes 2009 2008
AR TR ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
kRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
ME - WENMKRE Property, plant and equipment 15 23 29
NI PN 5 Interests in subsidiaries 19 365,000 365,000
EMBEEME Total non-current assets 365,023 365,029
RBEE CURRENT ASSETS
FERFE e REM Prepayments, deposits and
& U 3R other receivables 23 75 203
Re MIRTTH & Cash and bank balances 24 106 2,819
FE U BT B A B 5 A Due from subsidiaries 19 74,023 73,367
BREBEE Total current assets 74,204 76,389
mEAE CURRENT LIABILITIES
H b JE S 3 K JERTRUE Other payables and accruals 26 755 1,573
AN EENGIE Due to subsidiaries 19 10,222 8,623
BEREAasE Total current liabilities 10,977 10,196
BREEE NET CURRENT ASSETS 63,227 66,193
FAE Net assets 428,250 431,222
R EQUITY
BBITIRA Issued capital 29 3,824 3,824
5 Reserves 32(b) 415,153 427,398
R R RS Proposed final dividend 13 9,273 -
ATE Total equity 428,250 431,222
B {2 8 bogis
Chen Weirong Shuang Mei
o s
Director Director

FHEREDERAR
SETAEEH
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2.1

o

CORPORATE INFORMATION

EYANG Holdings (Group) Co., Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 6 March 2007 as an
exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands
under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised). The Company'’s registered office
is located at the offices of Codon Trust Company (Cayman)
Limited, Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands, and the head office
and principal place of business of the Company is located
at EYANG Building, No. 3 Qimin Street, No. 2 Langshan
Road, North Area, Hi-Tech Industrial Park, Nanshan District,
Shenzhen, the PRC.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out
in note 19 to these financial statements.

The Company is a subsidiary of EY OCEAN Management
Limited (“EY OCEAN"), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands. EY OCEAN is considered by the directors as
the Company’s ultimate holding company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”),
which comprise standards and interpretations approved by
the International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”),
and the International Accounting Standards and Standing
Interpretations Committee Interpretations approved by the
International Accounting Standards Committee that remain
in effect, and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for derivative financial
instruments, which have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.
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2.1

2.2

e

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2009. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases. All income, expenses and unrealised
gains and losses resulting from intercompany transactions
and intercompany balances within the Group are eliminated
on consolidation in full.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside
shareholders not held by the Group in the results and net
assets of the Company'’s subsidiaries.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised IFRSs
for the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

IFRS 1 and Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time
IAS 27 Adoption of IFRSs and IAS 27
Amendments Consolidated and Separate

IFRS 2 Amendments

IFRS 7 Amendments

IFRS 8

IFRS 8 Amendment*

IAS 1 (Revised)

Financial Statements — Cost of
an Investment in a Subsidiary,
Jointly Controlled Entity

or Associate

Amendments to IFRS 2 Share-based
Payment — Vesting Conditions
and Cancellations

Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures —
Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments

Operating Segments

Amendments to IFRS 8 Operating
Segments — Disclosure of
information about segment assets

(early adopted)

Presentation of Financial Statements

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
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2.2

o

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

IAS 18 Amendment*®

IAS 23 (Revised)

IAS 32 and IAS 1
Amendments

IFRIC 9 and

IAS 39 Amendments

IFRIC 13

IFRIC 15

IFRIC 16

IFRIC 18

Amendment to Appendix to IAS 18
Revenue — Determining
whether an entity is acting as
a principal or as an agent

Borrowing Costs

Amendments to IAS 32 Financial
Instruments. Presentation and
IAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements — Puttable Financial
Instruments and Obligations
Arising on Liquidation

Amendments to IFRIC 9
Reassessment of Embedded
Derivatives and IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement — Embedded

Derivatives

Customer Loyalty Programmes

Agreements for the Construction of

Real Estate

Hedges of a Net Investment in a

Foreign Operation

Transfers of Assets from Customers
(adopted from 1 July 2009)

Improvements to IFRSs  Amendments to a number of IFRSs

(May 2008)

* Included in Improvements to IFRSs 2009 (as issued in April 2009).
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2.2

e

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

The principal effects of adoption these new and revised IFRs
are as follows:

(a)

Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of IFRSs
and IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements-Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary,
Jointed Controlled Entity or Associate

The 1AS27 Amendment requires all dividends from
subsidiaries, associates or jointed-controlled entities
to be recongnised in the statement of comprehensive
income in the parent's separate financial statements.
The distinction between pre and post acquisition profits
is no longer required. However, the payment of such
dividends requires the Company to consider whether
there is an indicator of repairmen. The amendment is
applied prospectively.

Amendments to IFRS 2 Share-based Payment —
Vesting Conditions and Cancellations

The IFRS 2 Amendments clarify that vesting conditions
are service conditions and performance conditions
only. Any other conditions are non-vesting conditions.
Where an award does not vest as a result of a failure
to meet a non-vesting condition that is within the
control of either the entity or the counterparty, this is
accounted for as a cancellation. As the Group has not
entered into share-based payment schemes with non-
vesting conditions attached, the amendments have
had no impact on the financial position or results of
operations of the Group.
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2.2

CHANGES

o

IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND

DISCLOSURES (continued)

(c)

Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Improving Disclosures about Financial
Instruments

The IFRS 7 Amendments require additional disclosures
about fair value measurement and liquidity risk. Fair
value measurements related to items recorded at
fair value are to be disclosed by sources of inputs
using a three-level fair value hierarchy, by class, for
all financial instruments recognised at fair value. In
addition, a reconciliation between the beginning and
ending balances is now required for level 3 fair value
measurements, as well as significant transfers between
levels in the fair value hierarchy. The amendments also
clarify the requirements for liquidity risk disclosures
with respect to derivative transactions and assets used
for liquidity management.

IFRS 8 Operating Segments

IFRS 8, which replaces IAS 14 Segment Reporting,
specifies how an entity should report information about
its operating segments, based on information about
the components of the entity that is available to the
chief operating decision maker for the purposes of
allocating resources to the segments and assessing
their performance. The standard also requires the
disclosure of information about the products and
services provided by the segments, the geographical
areas in which the Group operates, and revenue from
the Group’s major customers. The Group concluded
that the operating segments determined in accordance
with IFRS 8 are the same as the business segments
previously identified under IAS 14. These revised
disclosures, including the related revised comparative
information, are shown in note 4 to the financial
statements.

The Group has early adopted in these financial
statements the Amendment to IFRS 8 issued in
Improvements to IFRSs 2009 which clarifies that
segment assets need only to be reported when those
assets are included in measures that are used by the
chief operating decision maker.

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
Annual Report 2009

o1




o2

Br S ¥R AR MY RE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R-ZFBEEhE+ = A=+—H 31 December 2009

22 GHHBEREE

(e)

()

L8(E)

B B AT 2 R S5 (RAERT)
AEIHREZ 25

B B & 5t A B SE 158 (4818 5T) Bl
AFBREZEINREFEEZE
) o WAL R RASER A
BEEBEANEREE  ExE
BREHINEEFEANETRSZ
I O MIEEBEANEZELEA
NEBEE 2% - thod - Z AR
SIAEEMWER  UWE—FEK
MHOBERKR IR ERRPHE
RO AWEZIER ERNER

HEBAZECHERWOMER
IR - AEEEZEUNE-—RE
E I

B EERE8RUA - BEF
PREEREFAEZALEAN
2B

5 EE WA M E M R (e &
) MHEEASEREIERAES
AERREA -ZEBEBALRS
émﬁmﬁ%fﬁ&i%%mi
EEME()BRFERR (A
RINER 2B RE - R (iv) & &
SERB - ZEFLEYAER
BRI EEEEENTE -

B a2 RIS 2358 (BERT) &
EBERA

B &5 ERIE235F B WIEFT
Mx?ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁéﬁﬁz
BEZHEE RBEXLEZREE
RAETERE - AR AEER
e ERABEKER & ZEER
ERIWER - AUt - ZEEBTE
Wiﬁ%KEIZ%%#%ﬁ@
BREERTE

FHERGBE)ERAF

—BRAETH

e

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(e)

IAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements

IAS 1 (Revised) introduces changes in the presentation
and disclosures of financial statements. The revised
standard separates owner and non-owner changes in
equity. The statement of changes in equity includes
only details of transactions with owners, with all non-
owner changes in equity presented as a single line.
In addition, this standard introduces the statement of
comprehensive income, with all items of income and
expense recognised in profit or loss, together with
all other items of recognised income and expense
recognised directly in equity, either in one single
statement, or in two linked statements. The Group has
elected to present one single statement.

Amendment to Appendix to IAS 18 Revenue —
Determining whether an entity is acting as a principal
or as an agent

Guidance has been added to the appendix (which
accompanies the standard) to determine whether the
Group is acting as a principal or as an agent. The
features to consider are whether the Group (i) has
the primary responsibility for providing the goods or
services, (ii) has inventory risk, (iii) has the discretion
to establish prices and (iv) bears credit risk. The
amendment has had no impact on the financial position
or results of operations of the Group.

IAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs

IAS 23 has been revised to require capitalisation
of borrowing costs when such costs are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset. As the Group’s current
policy for borrowing costs aligns with the requirements
of the revised standard, the revised standard has
had no impact on the financial position or results of
operations of the Group.
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2.2

CHANGES

o

IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND

DISCLOSURES (continued)

(h)

Amendments to IAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation and IAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements — Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation

The IAS 32 Amendments provide a limited scope
exception for puttable financial instruments and
instruments that impose specified obligations arising
on liquidation to be classified as equity if they fulfil a
number of specified features. The IAS 1 Amendments
require disclosure of certain information relating to
these puttable financial instruments and obligations
classified as equity. As the Group currently has no such
financial instruments or obligations, the amendments
have had no impact on the financial position or results
of operations of the Group.

Amendments to IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded
Derivatives and IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement — Embedded
Derivatives

The amendment to IFRIC 9 requires an entity to assess
whether an embedded derivative must be separated
from a host contract when the entity reclassifies a
hybrid financial asset out of the fair value through profit
or loss category. This assessment is to be made based
on circumstances that existed on the later of the date
the entity first became a party to the contract and the
date of any contract amendments that significantly
change the cash flows of the contract. IAS 39 has been
revised to state that if an embedded derivative cannot
be separately measured, the entire hybrid instrument
must remain classified as fair value through profit or
loss in its entirety. The adoption of the amendments
has had no impact on the financial position or results of
operations of the Group.
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

()

IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes

IFRIC 13 requires customer loyalty award credits to
be accounted for as a separate component of the
sales transaction in which they are granted. The
consideration received in the sales transaction is
allocated between the loyalty award credits and the
other components of the sale. The amount allocated
to the loyalty award credits is determined by reference
to their fair value and is deferred until the awards are
redeemed or the liability is otherwise extinguished.
As the Group currently has no customer loyalty award
scheme, the interpretation has had no impact on the
financial position or results of operations of the Group.

IFRIC 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real
Estate

IFRIC 15 clarifies when and how an agreement for the
construction of real estate should be accounted for
as a construction contract in accordance with 1AS 11
Construction Contracts or an agreement for the sale of
goods or services in accordance with IAS 18 Revenue.
The interpretation has had no impact on the financial
position or results of operations of the Group.

IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign
Operation

IFRIC 16 provides guidance on the accounting for
a hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation.
This includes clarification that (i) hedge accounting
may be applied only to the foreign exchange
differences arising between the functional currencies
of the foreign operation and the parent entity; (ii)
a hedging instrument may be held by any entities
within a group; and (iii) on disposal of a foreign
operation, the cumulative gain or loss relating to
both the net investment and the hedging instrument
that was determined to be an effective hedge
should be reclassified to the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income as a reclassification
adjustment. As the Group currently has no hedge of a
net investment in a foreign operation, the interpretation
has had no impact on the financial position or results of
operations of the Group.

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
Annual Report 2009



B ISR MY RE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R-FEEhE+ = H=+—H 31 December 2009

o

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
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(m)

IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers (adopted
from 1 July 2009)

IFRIC 18 provides guidance on accounting by
recipients that receive from customers items of
property, plant and equipment or cash for the
acquisition or construction of such items, provided that
these assets must then be used to connect customers
to networks or to provide ongoing access to a supply
of goods or services, or both. As the Group currently
has no such transactions, the interpretation has had no
impact on the financial position or results of operations
of the Group.

In May 2008, the IASB issued its first Improvements
to IFRSs which sets out amendments to a number
of IFRSs. Except for the amendments to IFRS 5
Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations — Plan to sell the controlling interest in
a subsidiary which are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2009, the Group adopted
all the amendments from 1 January 2009. While
the adoption of some of the amendments results
in changes in accounting policies, none of these
amendments has had a significant financial impact
to the Group. Details of the key amendments most
applicable on the Group are as follows:

° IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment:
Replaces the term “net selling price” with “fair
value less costs to sell” and the recoverable
amount of property, plant and equipment is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell
and its value in use.

° IAS 23 Borrowing Costs: The definition of
borrowing costs is revised to consolidate
the two types of items that are considered
components of “borrowing costs” into one - the
interest expenses calculated using the effective
interest rate method in accordance with IAS 39.
The Group has amended its accounting policy
accordingly which did not result in any change
in its financial position.
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

IAS 36 /mpairment of Assets: When discounted
cash flows are used to estimate “fair value
less costs to sell”, additional disclosures
(e.g., discount rate and growth rate used)
are required which are consistent with the
disclosures required when the discounted cash
flows are used to estimate “value in use”.

IAS 38 Intangible Assets: Expenditure on
advertising and promotional activities is
recognised as an expense when the Group
either has the right to access the goods or has
received the service.

The reference to there being rarely, if ever,
persuasive evidence to support an amortisation
method for intangible assets other than the
straight-line method has been removed.

IAS 40 /nvestment Property: Revises the
scope such that property being constructed
or developed for future as an investment
property is classified as an investment property.
The Group has applied the amendment
prospectively from 1 January 2009.
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2.3

o

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these

financial statements.

IFRS 1 (Revised)

IFRS 1 Amendments

IFRS 1 Amendment

IFRS 2 Amendments

IFRS 3 (Revised)

IFRS 9

IAS 24 (Revised)

IAS 27 (Revised)

IAS 32 Amendment

IAS 39 Amendment

First-time Adoption of International
Financial Reporting Standards’

Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of International Financial
Reporting Standards — Additional
Exemptions for First-time
Adopters®

Amendment to IFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of International Financial
Reporting Standards — Limited
Exemption from Comparative
IFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time
Adopters®

o7

Amendments to IFRS 2
Share-based Payment — Group
Cash-settled Share-based
Payment Transactions®

Business Combinations’
Financial Instruments®
Related Party Disclosures®

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements’

Amendment to IAS 32 Financial
Instruments. Presentation —
Classification of Rights Issues’

Amendment to IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement — Eligible Hedged
Items’
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

IFRIC 14 Amendments  Amendments to IFRIC 14
Prepayments of a Minimum
Funding Requirement’

IFRIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to
Owners'
IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities
with Equity Instruments®
Amendments to Amendments to IFRS 5 Non-current
IFRS 5 included Assets Held for Sale and
in Improvements to Discontinued Operations — Plan to
IFRSs issued sell the controlling interest in
in May 2008 a subsidiary’

Apart from the above, the IASB has issued Improvements
to IFRSs 2009 which sets out amendments to a number of
IFRSs primarily with a view to removing inconsistencies and
clarifying wording. The amendments to IFRS 2, IAS 38, IFRIC
9 and IFRIC 16 are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 July 2009 while the amendments to IFRS 5, IFRS
8, IAS 1, IAS 7, IAS 17, IAS 36 and IAS 39 are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010 although
there are separate transitional provisions for each standard or
interpretation.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February 2010
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

o o & w N =

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of these new and revised IFRSs upon initial application.
So far, the Group considers these new and revised IFRSs are
unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s results of
operations and financial position.
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2.4

o

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating
policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to
obtain benefits from its activities. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the
date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of comprehensive income to the extent of dividends
received and receivable. The Company’s interests in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets, financial assets and
investment properties), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
the asset's or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair
value less costs to sell, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the statement of comprehensive income in the period in
which it arises in those expense categories consistent with the
function of the impaired assets.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss
of an asset is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss
is credited to the statement of comprehensive income in the
period in which it arises.
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2.4

e

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under
common control with, the Group; (i) has an interest in
the Group that gives it significant influence over the
Group; or (iii) has joint control over the Group;

(b) the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or its parent;

(c) the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (a) or (b);

(d) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled
or significantly influenced by or for which significant
voting power in such entity resides with, directly or
indirectly, any individual referred to in (b) or (c); or

(e) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group, or of any entity
that is a related party of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the statement of comprehensive income
in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciation.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal

MepEILT - estimated useful lives and residual values used for this
purpose are as follows:
et AEH ER{E
Estimated Residual
useful lives values
BF Buildings 40 4F years 10%
B K #k 25 Plant and machinery 10 4= years 10%
WAEREA R Office and other equipment 5 4 years 10%
"E Motor vehicles 5 4F years 10%
E-IEVE BELRBHEE Z2HPH Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
MBEBETRZAAFR + %MD 2 KA have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
SUAERANSELEE MmO T on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
- depreciated separately.
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Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the
period the asset is derecognised is the difference between
the net sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.

Construction in progress representing plant and machinery
under construction is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.
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2.4

e

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather
than for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course
of business. Such properties are measured initially at cost,
including transaction costs, less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. Depreciation is calculated on the
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of 40 to 50
years.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income in the year of the retirement or
disposal.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the statement of
comprehensive income as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products
is capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale, its
intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset,
how the asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the project and the ability
to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet these
criteria is expensed when incurred.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included in
non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to the statement of comprehensive income
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the
Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases
are charged to the statement of comprehensive income on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Land lease prepayments represent the cost of land use rights
paid to the government authorities of the People's Republic
of China (“PRC"). Land lease prepayments under operating
leases are initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
Annual Report 2009



B ISR MY RE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R-ZZEFEHE+ = A=+—H 31 December 2009

24

TEEHRRBEE)

RERHEMMESBMEE
HIEHER R G2
RERHERFEIREERARN 2R
BEDPEREAFHEHITAEBEZZEHE
E ERRERFURTHHIESHE
E-EERBREFFEREHAIA
ZPTETARAGRBAME) - REBE R
ﬁﬁw%ﬁmﬁﬁﬂﬁgz 5% o £
& E R ) 6 TR N FAE (5 3%
éI?E?H’“IFTE?)\TEﬁﬁ)E%ﬂsEJEQ
DA FE

E—RBERMESREEONRKS
BAKEAZBEILEEEZHA
H)HR  —RBEERBEEBEE R
ETMEERAEDS —RERONKE
M EZHBRAXNEE -

AEEZEREERRERE RNRTHE

% TEURE 58k 3K I E b B AR IR K fE
Yo BE B T FNIE -

HigstE
CREERENBZEBHSENT
gﬁ&&%ﬁ
ERhERRBRIETEESREE

ﬁlmiTﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁ&&ﬁ%%Z
MHWE - RIAFER  HEEEH
BUAEBRMERTTARBHKA - XN
ERAREBESE - BEKEAZHES
EEWBHACHRAXEES S EREE
ERMNEXER MO 2EA - BEME
BHEet A AGEzHKaRZHEHBEA
R ER - REBRENEEZEEE
RZEMF L PHER -

FBRR(EEARAT
—BRAETH

2.4
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of IAS 39 are classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables, and available-for-sale financial assets,
or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured
at fair value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair value
through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

The Group’s financial assets include cash and bank balances,
trade and other receivables and amounts due from related
parties.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in other income and gain
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. The
loss arising from impairment is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in other expenses.
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2.4

e

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired,
° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash

flows from the asset, or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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2.4

o

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if,
and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a
result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that
loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses individually whether objective evidence of
impairment exists for financial assets that are individually
significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no
objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes
the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for
which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised
are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not yet been incurred). The present value of the
estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition). If a loan has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment
loss is the current effective interest rate.
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2.4

e

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly
or through the use of an allowance account and the amount
of the loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. Interest income continues to be
accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued
using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows
for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance are written
off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is
later recovered, the recovery is credited to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of IAS 39 are classified
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group
determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial
recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and
in the case of loans and borrowings, plus directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, amounts due to related parties and interest-bearing
bank loans.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at
cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
method amortisation process.
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2.4
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Loans and borrowings (continued)

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if,
and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate portion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within
three months when acquired.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.
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2.4

e

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the statement of
comprehensive income.

Provisions for product warranties granted by the Group on
certain products are recognised based on sales volume and
past experience of the level of repairs and returns, discounted
to their present values as appropriate.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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2.4
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with interests in subsidiaries where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised except:

° where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with interests in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.
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2.4
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
over the periods necessary to match the grant on a systematic
basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate. Where
the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to the statement of
comprehensive income over the expected useful life of the
relevant asset by equal annual instalments.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over
the goods sold;

(b) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms; and

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial instrument to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Employees (including directors) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment transactions,
whereby employees render services as consideration for
equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial model, further details of which are
given in note 30 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has
expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the
statement of comprehensive income for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is
conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are
treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market
or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payment
transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as
measured at the date of modification.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as
if they were a modification of the original award, as described
in the previous paragraph. All cancellations of equity-settled
transaction awards are treated equally.

Employee retirement benefits

As stipulated by the rules and regulations of the PRC, the
Company’s subsidiaries registered in the PRC are required
to contribute to a state-sponsored retirement plan for all its
PRC employees at certain percentages of the basic salaries
predetermined by the local governments. The state-sponsored
retirement plan is responsible for the entire retirement benefit
obligations payable to retired employees and the Group
has no further obligations for the actual retirement benefit
payments or other post-retirement benefits beyond the annual
contributions.

The costs of employee retirement benefits are recognised as
expenses in the statement of comprehensive income in the
period in which they are incurred.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.
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2.4

o

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Dividends

Dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a
separate allocation of retained profits within the equity section
of the statement of financial position, until they have been
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. When
these dividends have been approved by the shareholders and
declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Foreign currencies

The financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency. Each entity
in the Group determines its own functional currency and
items included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of
the reporting period. All differences are taken to the statement
of comprehensive income. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value was determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the RMB. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into the presentation currency of the Company at
the exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period
and their statements of comprehensive income are translated
to RMB at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of subsidiaries operating outside Mainland
China are translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling at
the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows
of subsidiaries operating outside Mainland China which arise
throughout the year are translated into RMB at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the
end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
could require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgments

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments - Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on
its investment property portfolio. The Group has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, that it retains all the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of these properties which are leased out
on operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the
Group considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation and another portion that is held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately, the Group accounts for the portions separately. If
the portions could not be sold separately, the property is an
investment property only if an insignificant portion is held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes.

Judgement is made on an individual property basis to
determine whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as an investment property.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

Impairment of assets

The Group determines whether an asset is impaired at least on
an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use
of the cash-generating units to which the asset is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-
generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. A
change in the estimated future cash flows and/or the discount
rate applied will result in an adjustment to the estimated
impairment provision previously made.

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant and
equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of
items of property, plant and equipment, the Group has to
consider various factors, such as technical or commercial
obsolescence arising from changes or improvements in
production, or from a change in the market demand for the
product or service output of the asset, expected usage of
the asset, expected physical wear and tear, the care and
maintenance of the asset, and legal or similar limits on the
use of the asset. The estimation of the useful life of the asset
is based on the experience of the Group with similar assets
that are used in a similar way. Additional depreciation is
made if the estimated useful lives and/or the residual values
of items of property, plant and equipment are different from
the previous estimation. Useful lives and residual values are
reviewed at the end of the reporting period based on changes
in circumstances.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences and unused tax losses to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets
that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value is made
based on the estimated net realisable value of inventories.
The assessment of the required write-down amount involves
management’s judgement and estimates. Where the actual
outcome or expectation in future is different from the original
estimate, such difference will have an impact on the carrying
amounts of inventories and the write-down charge/write-
back amount in the period in which such estimate has been
changed.

OPERATION SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on the nature of their products and
services they provide.

On 4 September 2009, the Group entered into a disposal
agreement with a related party of the Company to transfer
the entire equity interest in Shenzhen Eycom Technology Co.,
Ltd. (“SZ Eycom”) (RIIT{E@EHZ AR 2 7)) to the related
party at a consideration of RMB3,445,000. The disposal
was completed on 14 October 2009. Further details of this
disposal are included in notes 12, 31 and 36(2)(d) to the
financial statements. Subsequent to the disposal, the multi-
layer ceramic chips (“MLCC”) segment became the only
major continuing reportable operating segment of the Group,
which engages in the manufacture and sale of MLCC and the
trading of MLCC. Accordingly, no further business segment
information is provided.

Geographical information for the continuing operation
businesses

—EENE ZEENF

2009 2008

AR¥E T AR T T

RMB’000 RMB’000

(g &)
(Restated)

Y= N Revenue from external customers:

A B K BE Mainland China 156,504 76,473
BB KRB Hong Kong and Macau 120,078 131,549
3 B R [BOM America and Europe 7,031 243
+EH Turkey 6,041 5,525
EE India 5,889 7,670
= Taiwan 3,078 11,186
H A Japan 1,668 -
300,289 232,646

FHEREDERAT
STTAEEH
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5. WA HARKE

WA BEEEzZEXB)ECEEm
BREFEHBARERES MK

%)

FBREEBZIRA - Hb A Rz

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAIN

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the
net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns
and trade discounts.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gain from continuing

BT operations is as follows:
B 7 —EENEF ZEENF
Notes 2009 2008
ARMET T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&)
(Restated)
A Revenue
MLCC $8 & Sale of MLCC 300,289 232,646
Ht g A Other income
AT H B WA Bank interest income 7 364 1,162
el A Rental income 7 3,444 2,402
5 I %8 b Government grant - 1,000
IR FE U A Y Amortisation of deferred income 27 806 806
S5 R R Sale of materials 869 1,185
H Others 206 42
5,689 6,597
W &= Gain
HeE - @B AR 2z Gainon disposal of a subsidiary 31 9,707 -
15,396 6,597

6. MBEMRL
FEREXBZRMERADITMT

6.

FINANCE COSTS
An analysis of finance costs from continuing operations is as
follows:

—EEhEF —EENF

2009 2008

AR¥E TR ARET T

RMB’000 RMB’000

(gg&Et)
(Restated)

RITERF B Interest on bank loans 1,743 1,019

FHEREGBE)ERAF

“ETAEER
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7 B B A1 Al
AEERFBELEXETG 2BRBEAMABECH

e

PROFIT BEFORE TAX
The Group’s profit before tax from continuing operations is

B (GEA)

arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Bt 3 —EBERE —TENF
Notes 2009 2008
AR TR AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&)
(Restated)
BEEERAN Cost of inventories sold 277,046 162,369
e Depreciation 24,151 17,979
& £ b 78 5 2 5 Amortisation of land lease prepayments 488 296
HipE &= H Amortisation of other intangible assets 172 -
e RFAZEKK Research and development costs:
rEERX Current year expenditure 6,168 2,647
BFLEAOsE Minimum lease payments under operating
HEFIEB leases in respect of buildings 236 266
ZE M & Auditors’ remuneration 1,100 1,080
EERMAZ(BE Employee benefit expense (including directors’
E=Me(fiEs)) remuneration (note 8)):
I;é k# & Wages and salaries 35,308 30,226
RRIE R 50 Retirement benefit contributions 1,230 1,459
BEEEERERS Equity-settled share option expense 1,695 4,947
EREE(FHE) Foreign exchange differences, net 466 2,856
WHETEEE Provision against slow-moving inventories* 688 1,833
B FETRE" Impairment of trade receivables* 5,320 1,316
T 8 B+ Government grant** - (1,000)
REMERS KA Rental income on investment properties less
MEBRLERY direct operating expense of RMB349,000
AR #349,0007T (2008: RMB196,000)
(20085 : AR
196,0007T ) 5 3,444 2,402
FATFBBA Bank interest income 5 364 1162
HEME  BERX Loss on disposal of items of property, plant
FEZER and equipment - 43
HE—HNBRA Gain on disposal of a subsidiary
2 W 31 9,707 -
* FHTEREBERERESRFRER 21 * The provision against slow-moving inventories and impairment of

ERazEBERIEMEJET -

- BB RN TR BRMNESREAEE
EEZ EmRXA L2

FHEREDERAT
—TTAEEH

trade receivables are included in “Other expenses” on the face of the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
> The government grant represents the subsidy received from the
Shenzhen Bureau of Science Technology & Information for listing
expenditure incurred by the Group.
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o

EEME 8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

EEMWEFEFTOT - Details of directors’ remuneration are as follows:
—EEAF —EEINF
2009 2008
AR®T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
we Fees 253 288

E B2 Other emoluments:

e KERL Salaries and allowances 732 928
R RAE A 3R Retirement benefit contributions 42 36
REAEERER Equity-settled share option expense 333 579
1,107 1,543
1,360 1,831

FA G ETEFEARF/AKERF M
ERBEARARZEREFERTER
B ARE—PHBEHERTBRERHM
H30 REEBBZATFEEERE
THREREZEKRERAER) ERERL
BHEE Mt ARNFREMHHRERZE
HERRELXEEME 2 BEEHA -

FRAEELENHFHTARFE
MESFERIMARAGE ZES - HER
BEREE UTEESERL2AFRERR
R E R Z R0 -

(@) BIFHITES
FARBILIFNATEE N 28

During the year, certain directors were granted share options,
in respect of their services to the Group, under the share
option scheme of the Company, further details of which are
set out in note 30 to the financial statements. The fair value
of such options which has been recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income over the vesting period was
determined as at the date of grant, and the amount included
in the financial statements for the current year is included in
the above directors’ remuneration disclosures.

During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group to any
of the directors of the Company as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

(a) Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors

Eap (N during the year were as follows:
—EEhEF —EENF
2009 2008
ARBT R ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B k& Mr. Liu Huanbin 74 84
EEEE Mr. Pan Wei 74 84
REREE Mr. Peleus Chu 105 120
253 288

FRAABABIIFATEETIN
H B & (20084F : &) -

FHEREDERAT
—TTAEEH

There were no other emoluments payable to
independent non-executive directors during the year
(2008: Nil).
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8. BEEME(£E) 8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) HITRIEFITESE (b)  Executive and non-executive directors

RKEF REGE

FeRER s BREMX
Salaries  Retirement Equity-settled “Bme
ok and benefit ~share option Total
Fees allowances contributions expense remuneration

ARBTR AR¥TR ARETR AR¥TRT AR%T:R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

B 20095 Year ended
12A3BLEE 31 December 2009

WITEE Executive directors:
RERTE Mr. Chen Weirong - 284 14 17 415
BHREE Mr. Liao Jie - 204 14 108 36
e Ms. Shuang Mei* - 193 11 85 289
- 681 39 310 1,030
FRITES : Non-executive directors:
BRELE Mr. Cheng Wusheng - - - - -
REMEAE Mr. Zhang Zhilin - - - - -
W& Mr. Chen Hao - - - - _
FEWRESE Mr. Li Hegiu - - - - -
miELL Ms. Shuang Me* - 51 3 23 77
- 51 3 23 77
FHER(EE)BRAR EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
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8. E=E=ME#) 8.

(b) HBOIRFBITES(E)

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) Executive and non-executive directors (continued)

BB RiEHE

i #H® BERERX
Salaries Retirement  Equity-settled B e
ke and benefit  share option Total
Fees allowances  contributions expense  remuneration

ARBTT ARBTR ARBTR ARETT ARETRL
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

B Z2008F Year ended
12A3BLEE 31 December 2008

HITEE Executive directors:
BREREE Mr. Chen Weirong - 394 12 203 609
BHREE Mr. Liao Jie - 240 12 188 440
"L Ms. Shuang Mei - 294 12 188 494
- 928 36 579 1,543
FHITEE - Non-executive directors:
BREXE Mr. Cheng Wusheng - - - - _
REMEE Mr. Zhang Zhilin - - - _ _
et Mr. Chen Hao - - _ _ _
FEWRESE Mr. Li Hegiu - - - _ _
* BEZXLOHARBNTESH - Ms. Shuang Mei was re-designated from an executive director

FAARQBERITES + 52009
F10A15B AR -

9. TERaHEEE 9.
FAN 5EEaFTEEEBE24(2008
F2R)ES  HFEMFBEH R L
8 F N Hfp34 (20084 :3%) 3k
EE BReycEBZEFMFBOT :

of the Company to a non-executive director of the Company
with effect from 15 October 2009.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included
two (2008: two) directors, details of whose remuneration
are set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of
the remaining three (2008: three) non-director, highest paid
employees for the year are as follows:

—EEAF —EENF

2009 2008

ARE T ARET T

RMB’000 RMB’000

e MOEM Salaries and allowances 1,099 1,038
RAKAE R R Retirement benefit contributions 28 32
R EERER Equity-settled share option expense 216 217
1,343 1,287

SR EEARAA
“ETAEER
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10.

hTEREFERERE(H)
FHENATHREZIES &aFHd
BEZHBWT

e

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)
The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following band is as follows:

—eBAE| -—TINE
2009 2008
Tz AR %1,000,0007C Nil to RMB1,000,000 3 3

FR 22 FEERESFREANRSE
RAREE RS MERERE - BRE—
FHBEERYBRRMEN - ZFHE
Bz AFEEERETHEAREZE
BaXABRERELAHEE - M
AARFEMBRRZEEOBREAEL
XHEFERRFEEEMSZEREEHN
A o

During the year, share options were granted to two non-
director, highest paid employees in respect of their services
to the Group, further details of which are included in the
disclosures in note 30 to the financial statements. The fair
value of such options, which has been recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income over the vesting period,
was determined as at the date of grant and the amount
included in the financial statements for the current year is
included in the above non-director, highest paid employees’
remuneration disclosures.

FREBMX 10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
AEEERAEBKERRIEMERE The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits
BYREERBREE 2T BERERT M arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which members
RS HL © of the Group are domiciled and operate.
AR ASEFAREBILLE E £ I No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the
BERBFE M AEETERE S Group had no assessable profits derived from or earned in
FIGBEL BE - Hong Kong during the year.
ARARRRPRE KB RRFEITF Shenzhen Eyang Technology Development Co., Ltd. (“SZ
BREERBERARERINFREDER Eyang”) CRIITTFIE R R B R A A ), a subsidiary of the
2008 F 12 H16 HEM B ER Company in the PRC, obtained its high technology enterprise
F B 720084 £ 20104 HA fH 2 B AR accreditation on 16 December 2008 and hence is subject to a
ZEBEMMEHEEB15% o national income tax rate of 15% from 2008 to 2010.
B EXFrilu R Y F 50 = H15% B B/ Except for SZ Eyang mentioned above that are entitled to a
KON KRBl z2WBRAINFERNER preferential tax rate of 15%, the subsidiaries of the Company
25% 12T RN FTBH - were required to pay corporate income tax (“CIT") at the
standard rate of 25% during the year.
—g8RE| -—TT)\F
2009 2008
AR%EFT R ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
REME - Group:
BNER — o Current — PRC
FEMBI L Charge for the year 1,508 8,790
IR T Deferred 1,567 964
FABBZ L BT Total tax charge for the year 3,075 9,754

FHEREDERAT
STTAEEH
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10. FEBEXE) 10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)
R BEATR AR RAE 2B A A A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to profit
HEAMESHAYEHIRAER TR R before tax at the statutory income tax rate of the PRC to the
FECHETRIASOT income tax expense at the Group’s effective tax rate is as
follows:
KEE -20095F Group — 2009
RE KR HEEE @t
Mainland China Cayman Islands Total
ARETR Btk AR¥Trn BAlt AR%¥Tn Aol
RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
SEREEB L Profit before tax from
bR % A1 F R continuing operations 46,650 (3,462) 43,188
BETEMEFEZHIE  Taxat the statutory tax rate 11,663 25 - - 11,663 27
WTEBE2HIEFE :  Taxeffect of:
BrHEREIEER Lower tax rates for specific
BERE districts or countries (1,198) 3) - - (1,198) 3)
TR B 1 Tax incentives (3,415) ) - - (3,415) (8)
o BHIREEARIE  Adjustments in respect of
ZHE current tax of previous
periods (3,696) (8) - - (3,696) 9)
BERBBA Income not subject to tax (1,577) 3) - - (1,577) )
TAMFES Expenses not deductible for tax 416 1 - - 416 1
ERAZAMEZHE  Taxlosses utilised from
BB previous periods (270) - - - (270) -
AERZHEBE Tax losses not recognised 212 - - - 212 -
BIMDR50% T 7 Additional deduction of
R M A 50% of the research and
development expense (1,785) (4) - - (1,785) (4)
HAEE 2% Effect of withholding tax on
MBREADREFE  the distributable profits of
ZHEABYE the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries 2,458 5 - - 2,458 6
Hih Others 267 1 - - 267 1
REAREERTX Tax charge at the Group’s
HEZHERY effective tax rate 3,075 7 - - 3,075 7
FHERGEEAR AR EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
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10. FEBIEXE) 10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)
K& B - 2008 F Group — 2008
KR HERE @i
Mainland China Cayman Islands Total
AR®ETF T BAlt ARETR BAlt ARETR BAk
RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
BELEEB Profit before tax from
B B A continuing operations 39,524 (8,790) 30,734
METHMEHE ZMIE  Taxat the statutory tax rate 9,882 25 - - 9,882 32
WTEETHIEFE . Taxeffect of:
BEEMmEZBERET  Lower tax rates for specific
districts (1,403) (4) - - (1,403) 5)
HIB R B Tax incentives (560) (1) - - (560) ©)
BERBBA Income not subject to tax (121) - - - (121) _
AAMARAZ Expenses not deductible
for tax 831 2 - - 831 3
FRzAER A Taxlosses utilised from
B previous periods (362) 1 - - (362) (1)
AERZHEEE Tax losses not recognised 150 - - - 150 -
HARKE Effect of withholding tax on
MEBLARAAEARE  the distributable profits of
ZHEABYE the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries 955 2 - - 955 3
Hih Others 382 1 - - 382 1
REAKEERBX Tax charge at the Group’s
HEHERY effective tax rate 9,754 24 - - 9,754 31
1. BAREEAEERE 11. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE

HE200F512A831BIEEFEZHA
ABEABEGREFNBEEEBEAR
# 4,562,000 70 (2008 F : 1B A R
8,790,0007T) * ZEE E R AR & B 1%
& PR R (M E32(b)) °

SR EEARAA
“ETAEER

PARENT

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the parent
for the year ended 31 December 2009 includes a loss of RMB
4,562,000 (2008: loss of RMB8,790,000) which has been dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company (note 32(b)).

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
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12, RILBEEK

MR2009F9 A48 » AEBHEHARRZ
BEFFITEEREABR 2AE
BIIREDIIYLEHE  UREARK
3,445,000 T A Bl EEEZRIEBZ
EEREE - RYIEBRERERHEER
BFH - ENASEEVHFHRERIFE

BE - BRBEBHFHHEHRF AR

AEBERERIEEBHFHRER - I
BEEREFRHBNAZFERAHMLCC
¥BEE - HEFIMEEB 12009 F
10 A14H5ERK » 72009412 A31H » &
EEMERZEORIEBEE 2 EE

HEE -

AINEBNFREEE2/0T ¢

12.

o

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

On 4 September 2009, the Group entered into a disposal
agreement with Shenzhen Weichuang Investment Co., Ltd.
(“Weichuang Investment”) (JZ Il T E &I & E B R 2 &),
a related party of the Company, to transfer the entire
equity interest in SZ Eycom to Weichuang Investment at a
consideration of RMB3,445,000. SZ Eycom engages in the
manufacture and sale of mobile phones. The Group has
decided to cease its mobile phone business in view of the
continuing loss from the mobile phone business and the fierce
competition in the PRC mobile phone market, and to focus its
resources on the development of the growing MLCC business.
The disposal of SZ Eycom was completed on 14 October
2009. As at 31 December 2009, no assets or liabilities of the
Group were attributable to this discontinued operation.

The results of SZ Eycom for the year are presented below:

—EENF —EENF
2009 2008
AR¥T T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
A Revenue 315,102 545,161
55 B AN Cost of sales (302,181) (517,532) 85
EAH Gross profit 12,921 27,629
H At U A R W EE Other income and gains 635 2,385
$H & & SR Selling and distribution costs (18,940) (25,347)
THERB Administrative expenses (3,648) (3,979)
fift 7% B A B AR AR Research and development costs (4,330) (9,884)
HihFE X Other expenses (6,617) 1,625
Bl & R AR Finance costs (431) (1,334)
I < ¥ Loss before tax from the discontinued operation
B iR & 1R (20,410) (8,905)
Frig %t Income tax - (758)
BRI E B2 Loss for the year from the discontinued operation
FEEIE (20,410) (9,663)

FHEREDERAT
STTAEEH
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12 RUEREXEKE)

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued)

&

FHEREAZESREFHOT - The net cash flows incurred by SZ Eycom are as follows:
—EENF ZEENF
2009 2008
AR® T AREBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B EE Operating activities (27,613) 27,591
REFH Investing activities 346 (626)
BEEE Financing activities (18,759) (1,383)
WEFRACGRH)  Net cash inflow/(outflow) (46,026) 25,582
BB Loss per share:
HA K #E (kB Basic and diluted, from the discontinued operation
RIS ) (5.0 1 cents) (2.4 {li cents)

RIEREXBH I BRERNRBEEFEERT)

BTHIEBE

the discontinued operation is based on:

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share from

—EEhE —EENF
2009 2008
ARBT R ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
NI S Y e Loss attributable to ordinary equity holders
A AEIERIE of the parent from the discontinued operation
KEEBZER 20,410,000 9,663,000
BEsFEERER Weighted average number of ordinary shares
BNzERN in issue during the year used in the
BT T MR basic earnings per share calculation
2 I 405,500,000 405,290,000
13. RE 13. DIVIDENDS
—EEAF ZTET)NF
2009 2008
AR®BT R ARBETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
¥t R 7R B Proposed final
- F 26781 - HK2.6 cents per share
(20084 : &) (2008: Nil) 9,273 -
BMKFERARBBALERRBIRERIE The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the
ERFBEFRE LK FAEE - approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming

SR EEARAA
“ETAEER

annual general meeting.

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
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14.

15.

BARERERBREFEAELER
Z2F

BRELABANSENERT QLT BR
BEFEAELFENBEFALR
% 17 405,500,000 & & @ I (2008 & :
405,290,000% L@k R B E #17) 2
InEFHEEE -

R FERD R HERRTTEZ BRER
FALEEERE  FAYE25E5R
BERNEHE -

ME - BERRE

o

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
The calculation of basic earnings per share amounts is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the parent and the weighted average of ordinary shares of
405,500,000 (2008: 405,290,000 ordinary shares deemed to
have been in issue) in issue during the year.

The share options granted and outstanding during the year
had no dilutive effect during the year and accordingly, no

diluted earnings per share amount has been presented.

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

wE Group
WERR
BER Hitv &
B Office RE REIR
BF Plant and and other Motor Construction Fy
Buildings  machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
AR¥TR AR%Trn AR%Trn AR®Tn AR®Tn AR%Tx
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
2009128318 31 December 2009
R2008F 12318 & At 31 December 2008 and
20091718 : at 1 January 2009:
AR Cost 74,612 237678 18,269 1,394 878 332,831
ZHMERAME Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (5,266) (60,745) (8,109) (981) - (75,101)
EEFE Net carrying amount 69,346 176,933 10,160 413 878 257,730
FR2009F1A18 At 1 January 2009, net of
MK 2ERRE accumulated depreciation
and impairment 69,346 176,933 10,160 413 878 257,730
NE Additions 530 14,157 943 85 7,399 23,114
HE Disposals - U] (32) - - (39)
& — M B A A Disposal of a subsidiary
GEX (note 31) - (263) (3,993) - - (4,256)
B Transfers 32 - - - (32) -
HAZHEME Transfer to investment
(PzE16) properties (note 16) (6,324) - - - - (6,324)
FNRERE Provided during the year (1,619) (20,954) (2,329) (82) - (24,978)
F2009F12A31H - At 31 December 2009, net of
Nk 2E T E RRE accumulated depreciation
and impairment 61,965 169,866 4,755 416 8,245 245,247
720094123318 ¢ At 31 December 2009:
KA Cost 68,851 251,506 14,133 1,479 8,245 344,214
ZHMERAME Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (6,386)  (81,640) (9,378) (1,063) - (98,967)
ERFE Net carrying amount 61,965 169,866 4,755 416 8,245 245,247

FHEREDERAT
STTAEEH
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15. Y% - BERZEE) 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
AEE(E) Group (continued)
MEER
iz R HEtk
#a Office "E ERIR
BF Plant and and other Motor Construction it
Buildings ~ machinery  equipment vehicles  in progress Total

ARBTL ARBTT ARBETT ARBTT ARBTT ARETRT
RMB000O ~ RMBO000 ~ RMB000 ~ RMBO00 ~ RMB000  RMB'000

2008F12A31H 31 December 2008

R2007E12A318 K% At31 December 2007 and

2008F1A1A : at 1 January 2008:
B A Cost 44,202 146,467 16,436 1,394 18,819 227,318
ZFMERAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (4,154) (45,467) (5,422) (785) - (55,828)
BEFE Net carrying amount 40,048 101,000 11,014 609 18,819 171,490
M2008F1R18 At 1 January 2008, net of
MBEFHERFE  accumulated depreciation
and impairment 40,048 101,000 11,014 609 18,819 171,490
NE Additions 3,232 72,904 1,535 - 34,651 112,322
& Disposals (43) - - - _ (43)
B Transfers 33,987 18,307 298 - (52,592) -
BERERANE Transfer to investment
(Ffi5E16) properties (note 16) (6,744) - - - - (6,744)
FRWERE Provided during the year (1,134) (15,278) (2,687) (196) - (19,295)
R2008%12A318 At 31 December 2008, net of
MBREFATERFE  accumulated depreciation
and impairment 69,346 176,933 10,160 413 878 257,730
2008 12 A318 : At 31 December 2008:
XA Cost 74,612 237,678 18,269 1,394 878 332,831
ZIMERRAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (5,266) (60,745) (8,109) (981) - (75,101)
REFE Net carrying amount 69,346 176,933 10,160 413 878 257,730
AEFEZEFH A B KRR BB E The Group’s buildings are held under medium term leases in
A e Mainland China.
AEEEEWE  BERZEAERE Details of the Group’s property, plant and equipment pledged
SBZIRTERFFE - SR E28(a) © to secure the Group’s bank loans are set out in note 28(a).
EEPEEES AT AEB MR E Certificates of ownership in respect of certain buildings of
5 R2009F 12H3TBERERFRELN B the Group located in Dongguan with a net carrying amount of
A K # 4,898,000 71 (2008 £ = A K ¥ approximately RMB4,898,000 as at 31 December 2009 (2008:
10,5628,0007T) 2 & T F Z B #E - RMB10,528,000) have not yet been issued by the relevant
PRC authorities.
FHER(EE)BRAR EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
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15. Y%  BERZEE) 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
¥ NN Company
MEE
REAMHRE
Office and other
equipment
AR¥T R
RMB’000
®2009%12A31H 31 December 2009
2008F 128310 & At 31 December 2008 and at 1 January 2009:
2009F1A18 :
BN Cost 35
2t E Accumulated depreciation (6)
BREF Net carrying amount 29
20091 A18 - At 1 January 2009, net of accumulated depreciation
Mk EAE 29
wNE Additions -
FRFTERB Provided during the year (6)
2009 12H31H - At 31 December 2009, net of accumulated depreciation
M RETE 23
720094 12 H31H At 31 December 2009:
BN Cost 35
REtE Accumulated depreciation (12)
AR F 3 Net carrying amount 23
FHERGEEAR AR EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
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16.

17.

e

REWHE 16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
B 5 —EENF —ZET)NF
Notes 2009 2008
ARMT T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
M1A1E Zp A - Cost at 1 January, net of accumulated
M 2t eE depreciation 10,345 3,700
BYE  BENKEBER  Transfer from property,
plant and equipment 15 6,324 6,744
FRFTERE Depreciation provided during the year (286) (99)
®12H31H At 31 December 16,383 10,345
MW12A318 : At 31 December:
BN Cost 16,826 10,503
R E Accumulated depreciation (443) (158)
R FE Net carrying amount 16,383 10,345

AEBZEEMERETFHEOFEL
o7 70 R B KB o

R2009F12A31H » AEEREMEZ
RNFEEDH B ARKEI7,140,0007T + T51R
BEVEXAERMGEMSE - KFEE
HHEMEXERABRATIZERER
RRR™Gz EREMGE -

The Group’s investment properties are held under medium
term leases and are situated in Mainland China.

At 31 December 2009, the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties was approximately RMB37,140,000, which was
based on the valuation performed by Savills Valuation and
Professional Services Limited, independent professionally

qualified valuers, on an open market, existing use basis.

HEL BN 17 LAND LEASE PREPAYMENTS
—EEhLF —EENF
2009 2008
AR® T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
KR1A1RZEREE Carrying amount at 1 January 22,781 10,958
FRRNE Additions during the year - 12,119
g B Amortisation provided during the year (488) (296)
M12A31EB ZRAE Carrying amount at 31 December 22,293 22781
BEEEMR - Current portion included in prepayments, deposits
Ko H h JE W R 2 B R and other receivables
7B (488) (488)
JERNEREE Non-current portion 21,805 22,293

FHEREDERAT
“EEATEH
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o

17 HEL#HBNARGE) 17 LAND LEASE PREPAYMENTS (continued)
AREB HAELHBEFRHBANOEAET The Group’s leasehold land is held under medium term leases
LA B K BE o and is situated in Mainland China.
AP EEE M AELANEBFRUR The certificate of land use right in respect of the land used
ZEEBINT - R2009F12A31HEEE by the Group located in Chuzhou, Anhui province with a
FEEL A AR11,376,0007T (2008 £ : net carrying amount of approximately RMB11,376,000 as at
AR #11,609,0007T ) 2 + #b & + Hb {5 31 December 2009 (2008: RMB11,609,000) has not yet been
R o issued by the relevant PRC authorities.
18. HMEFEE 18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
B e
Computer software
—EEhE ZET)NF
2009 2008
AR¥E T AR T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
M1A1E Z A Cost at 1 January, net of accumulated depreciation
(IBR REHHTE) - _
NE Additions 1,713 _
FRFREME 28  Amortisation provided during the year (172) -
®12A31H At 31 December 1,541 _ 91
B12A31H : At 31 December:
B 7 Cost 1,713 -
E £ Accumulated amortisation (172) _
BRI Net carrying amount 1,541 -
19. RAHEBEARIZ#ER 19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
NN Company
—EEhE —EENF
2009 2008
AR¥E TR ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
JEEMRR - EAAE Unlisted shares, at cost 365,000 365,000

FEREESKBAGRERSEARARD
AR EERARDEES A A
R ® 74,023,000 jt (2008 F : A R #
73,367,000 7t) & A R ® 10,222,000 JT
(20084 : AR #8,623,0007T) & JhE K
HEERRERNEE HERKE
ENMBARRB L EEBEREEATE
HBE -

FHEREDERAT
“EEATEH

The amounts due from and due to subsidiaries included
in the Company’s current assets and current liabilities of
RMB74,023,000 (2008: RMB73,367,000) and RMB 10,222,000
(2008: RMB8,623,000), respectively, are unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand. The carrying amounts of these
amounts due from and due to subsidiaries approximate to
their fair values.

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
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19. RHMEBRAR R (E) 19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
WRNTF(E) Company (continued)
MEBARZFEEHIMT Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows:
BETR
MR EZRE HBRBRA/
EERERAH R AEE AT
Place and date Nominal value RAFD
of incorporation/ ofissuedand  Percentage of equity
AEEE registration and paid-up share/ attributable to the TEER
Company name operations  registered capital Company Principal activities
B# fE %
Direct Indirect
% %
Eyang Management Co., Ltd. EEBEAHS 10,000 7T 100 - REZR
(“Eyang Management”) ZEERFENATH US$10,000 Investment holding
BVI
10 August 2006
Hong Kong Eyang Holdings (Group) = 10,0007 7T - 100 REER
Co., Ltd. —“EEXFENATZH HK$10,000 Investment holding
(BRFHER(ZE)BERAF) Hong Kong
13 August 2006
Hong Kong Eyang Technology &%,/ REKE 500,000 7T - 100 EEMLCC
Co., Ltd. “ET-F+A+ZH HK$500,000 Trading of MLCC
(BAEFHRBARAF) Hong Kong/
Mainland China
12 October 2001
SZ Eyang* HE/REARE ARE - 100 83E R HEMLCC
—EE-§ZA=+=H 250,685,6507C Manufacture and sale
PRC/Mainland China RMB250,685,650 of MLCC
22 February 2001
Dongguan Eyang Technology RE R E AR AR® - 100 EFHAREE
Development Co., Ltd. (‘DG Eyang") —ZEZE—F=F=-+=H 20,000,0007T MLCC
(AETFBHEERERAR) PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 Lease of buildings and
22 March 2001 trading of MLCC
Anhui Jineyang Electronic Technology h BB AR AR - 100 #
Co., Ltd. —ZENENAZTEH 5,000,0007T
(ZBEFHEEFREERAA) PRC/Mainland China RMBS5,000,000
25 August 2008
* FZERARBEPBEEMZEMALA/ER * Companies incorporated as limited liability companies under the PRC
S law.
# AR MARBRAZER # The company has not yet commenced operation.

FARA AEER-ZHEESTHEER
FYEBZ = BWREE12 31 &

36(d)) °

FHEREDERAT
STTAEEH

During the year, the Group disposed of its entire equity interest

in SZ Eycom to a related party (notes 12, 31 and 36(d)).

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO.
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20.

o

IE 3E B 18 20. DEFERRED TAX
NEANNEE ZIELEHBBEESS WO - The movements in deferred tax assets during the year are as
follows:
& Group
BB AR
ZHEZEH Bk 9% BE
BHEH g5%RN KRRHEEE
Amortisation HEFE REMER A&
of computer BiE FEME Impairment
software in Provision Impairment  of items of
excess of against of trade property, RERE
tax allowed slow-moving and other plant and Warranty st
depreciation  inventories receivables  equipment provision Total
ARETT ARBTr ARETRT ARETT ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
M2007F12 4318 At 31 December 2007 and
200851 A1H 1 January 2008 28 791 516 57 415 1,807
REARERNE Charged to the statement
of comprehensive income (7) (259) (87) - (415) (768)
72008124318 At 31 December 2008 and
%2009F1A1R 1 January 2009 21 532 429 57 - 1,039
REAREE Credited/(charged) to the
AR/ (J1K) statement of comprehensive 93
income (4) 111 799 (15) - 891
R2009%12A31H At 31 December 2009 17 643 1,228 42 - 1,930

AN £ @ 20094 12 A31 B B B 18 &
A R #2,264,0007t (2008 12 4318 :
AR #11,5689,0007T) & %A EIE A i
EXEEZFREEST  DIHIKHEZ
EREIBEEEZARBRBZEZFRF
e AR ZEBEREHEEE B
HrMBARELS  BREFZDAHR
NEE  BFHRAEFE®BHBAEER
DERBEFE  USBEEHREERE
MW ARZEHERREEREEE -

FHER(EEARA
—BRAETH

The Group had tax losses of approximately RMB2,264,000 as
at 31 December 2009 (31 December 2008: RMB11,589,000)
that can be carried forward for five years from the year in
which the losses arose for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose. Deferred
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these
losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been
loss-making for some time and there is insufficient convincing
evidence that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
the utilisation of the carryforward of tax losses before they
expire in five years.

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
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20.

ELEBRIEAE)
REETRIEEEW RBLIATIEB R -

20.

e

DEFERRED TAX (continued)
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
the following items:

REE
Group
—EENF —EENF
2009 2008
AR TR ARBTTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B BB Tax losses 2,264 11,589
AFIRERMEES  Deductible temporary differences - 7,956
2,264 19,645

FAREEHAEEZZESHWT

The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year are
as follows:

EMB
Withholding
taxes
AR T
RMB’000
M2007F 128318 & At 31 December 2007 and 1 January 2008
20084 1A 1H -
REER TP R Charged to the statement of comprehensive income 955
M2008F12H31H & At 31 December 2008 and 1 January 2009
2009F1H1H 955
REHE WX RN Charged to the statement of comprehensive income 2,458
7A2009F12831H At 31 December 2009 3,413

REFBEPEMESRE  IEHEEER
RABERERLAIGRECFEES 2
f% B 78I FB10% B B R BURTE 0/ - 3%
HFEMN2008F1A1HEER  @AR
2007F12A31 B % 2 B F| o s B KB
HZEINHEEEMEREZERTFER
gt AlEAREBENHE - A5E
HRHEES% - Bt - AEERFEH
KN BE RS 2 B B A B 3 7R 200841 H1H
"R 2 B 9IRS R BHMEN
i o

R20094 12 A31H - ¥ E T A& =M
BRARBRIRZARTRMAF I EE KR
EFIBEE EAR THER(2008F : ) o

FHEREDERAT
STTAEEH

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%.
The Group is therefore liable to withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland
China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 December 2009, there was no significant unrecognised
deferred tax liability (2008: Nil) for taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings of certain of the Group’s
subsidiaries.

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
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21,

22.

o

58 21. INVENTORIES
rE
Group
—EEhEF —EENF
2009 2008
ARE T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
R R Raw materials 25,188 51,804
ER 5 Work in progress 30,420 11,159
LR ah Finished goods 62,535 56,592
118,143 119,555
BT ERE Provision against slow-moving inventories (4,294) (8,003)
113,849 111,552
EUESRAREKRER 22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
rEE
Group
—EENF —ETNF
2009 2008
AR® T AR T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEWE FEREANEWEIE Trade and bills receivables 134,746 98,613
A Impairment (8,400) (3,080)
126,346 95,533

AEBHRAEMCCEFRPZEHHAURL
BERE HTMICCEFPZEEHR—&
R2E5EA - EEPRERSEER -

FTEREKEEREYBAxREHREITI0OE
193H M B Hf -

AEBMEREERPGREBRRIES - I
REEEEHBFANBEEEERBRRE
RIE - BEEE TS T MR8 HRER
RH-BUREZEAREE -

FHEREDERAT
“EEATEH

The Group’s trading terms with its MLCC customers are mainly
on credit. The credit period for MLCC customers generally are
two to five months. Each customer has a maximum credit limit.

The bills receivable were all due within 10 to 193 days from the

end of reporting period.

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables and has a credit control department to minimise
its credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by
management. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED

Annual Report 2009

95




96

Br IS ¥R AR MY RE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R-ZZEFEHE+ = A=+—H 31 December 2009

22.

BERESERIRAREVREE(#Z)
RBEHER  REZAHAEEYEIR
BIBERZERSTT  UREKRERZ
SEMAT -

22,

e

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)
An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, and the amount

of bills receivable are as follows:

—EETAF ZEE)NF

2009 2008

AR®T ARET T

RMB’000 RMB’000

90H K Within 90 days 78,575 84,815
91%180H 91 to 180 days 21,679 10,113
181360 H 181 to 360 days 1,181 605
122F 1to 2 years 106 -
2E3F 2to 3 years - 1,544
HBiE3F Over 3 years 3,080 1,636
104,621 98,613

E W E I Bills receivable 30,125 -
134,746 98,613

EWEZERFRERBEESNOT

The movements in the provision for impairment of trade

receivables are as follows:

—EZhEF —ET)NF

2009 2008

AR%FT R ARET T

RMB’000 RMB’000

®1A1H At 1 January 3,080 3,057

B RERREEE Impairment losses recognised 5,320 1,316
58 A A U B BR TR Amount written off as uncollectible

23R - (1,293)

M12H31H At 31 December 8,400 3,080

AN LEERE ZEFRERERE
FEREERKE SRR EBARE
8,400,000 7t (2008 4F : A R % 3,080,000
o) - EIR®EE A A R ¥ 8,400,000 7T
(20084 : AR #:3,080,0007T) ° ARIE
BERKEZEREERUBRE R
FAHBE WEBATTRE - NEBEIWE
MG EERFTEEMEE R E A NA
EEEE -

FHEREDERAT
STTAEEH

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
receivables is a provision for individually impaired trade
receivables of RMB8,400,000 (2008: RMB3,080,000) with a
carrying amount of RMB8,400,000 (2008: RMB3,080,000). The
individually impaired trade receivables relate to customers
that were in financial difficulties and are not expected to be
recovered. The Group does not hold any collateral or other

credit enhancements over these balances.
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2. EREZRRREREEE) 22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)
WIEERISKEREBRBREZEKE 5 An aged analysis of the trade receivables that are neither
RZEREDWI S - individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as

follows:
AEE
Group

—¥EAE| —TI)\F

2009 2008

ARET T ARETIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

i 7R 380 HA R 2R R E Neither past due nor impaired 90,195 89,485

B EI 90 A Less than 90 days past due 4,285 5,621

#HI91H £180H 91 to 180 days past due 1,635 427

#HI181H £360H 181 to 360 days past due 106 -

BWH1ZE26F 1to 2 years past due - -

96,221 95,533
MRS BN E LR ECEKE SR The trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
HEZIRARFPEH  BERTHT&E relate to a number of diversified customers for whom there

EWMITRTE - was no recent history of default.

CARERHRRE EBWE SRR R The trade receivables that were past due but not impaired
HEBUBEFPER HFERETEE 2N relate to a number of independent customers that have a good
KB RI - REBUATLER  KAAAE track record with the Group. Based on past experience, the
EREBECEEETESANE - Bt directors of the Company are of the opinion that no provision
ZEHKMB\ AT 2EWRE - Bt BAER for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as
I ESRIEL B EREE - there has not been a significant change in credit quality and

the balances are still considered fully recoverable.
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23. FAANN  BRERHEMERRK

23.

e

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

rE AKAF
Group Company
—ETAF —EENF —EEThE —EENF
2009 2008 2009 2008
ARBTR | ARBFTT| AR®TR ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
SRR R Prepayments 6,200 6,621 - 128
e MHAmEW SR Deposits and other
receivables 2,678 12,381 75 75
8,878 19,002 75 203
DERIE] Impairment (386) (386) - -
8,492 18,616 75 203

HEESRERBZEBWT

The movements in the provision for impairment of other
receivables are as follows:

rEH
Group
—EZThE ZETENF
2009 2008
AR T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
®1A1H At 1 January 386 386
B ROREE 1B Impairment losses recognised - -
»12A31H At 31 December 386 386

FEACE Al B Y OB B B S @RI 2 RLE
H Al U Rz Bm - ERIEREZH M
FEM R B A TR 2 REIRE B 5K
BR - UEMARYRE - NREBEYLER
It EEHRFAEMNERRIEMINRE
B e

fe) K 280 5 7T S 1 3RO B 0 HL A B IR Y
REEEEGTATEENTRLIELZ
HMEHABR -

FHEREDERAT
“EEATEH

Included in the above provision for impairment of other
receivables is a provision for individually impaired other
receivables. The individually impaired other receivables relate
to long outstanding prepayments to suppliers which are not
expected to be recovered. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances.

The carrying amounts of the other receivables that were
neither past due nor impaired related to other debtors for
whom there was no recent history of default.
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24, BENBEELSZEYNREHEFEITHE 24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED

= BANK DEPOSITS
rEH Group
“EEAE —ETN\F
2009 2008
AR¥TR ARBEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Be RRTER Cash and bank balances 61,663 130,713
EBF R Time deposit - 29,082
61,663 159,795
o EREMNZENERMR  Less: Pledged bank deposits for bills payable and
2 BEMRITER letters of credit (21,129) (21,291)
ERETERZEER Pledged bank deposits for bank loans
177 7 (T 5528(0)) (note 28(b)) (4,711) (28,579)
REMBHRREA Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated
ZHERBEEZEY statement of financial position 35,823 109,925
e WERRERIHE SR Add: Bank deposits with original maturity of
AR Z|ITHFN less than three months when acquired:
EREMNRERERMN Pledged for bills payable and letters of credit 20,628 19,791
ERBFTER Pledged for bank loans 4,711 1,989
RAEReREERNA Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated
B NBEeEEYD statement of cash flows 61,162 131,705
¥ NN Company
—EEAFE ZEENF
2009 2008
AR¥TR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Be RRTHES Cash and bank balances 106 2819
RBEHR AEEZRSRRESEE At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s cash and
YAANRBELIE - B ARE?26649,000 cash equivalents denominated in RMB amounted to
7T (20084 : AR #101,272,0007T) ° A RMB26,649,000 (2008: RMB101,272,000). The RMB is not
REATBEARLER A BREFEKX freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
b HNEEBIEN - HERZTINEE Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
BER - A& EEEEBEREREITIN Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
EEB MITHBARE - Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange

RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.
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24,

25.

RERRSESEYRCERRITHE
M(E)

RITFERDRIEE B RITERN RRF
BRI S - BEE ST RARR
F_EAZE—F1%F  LREREHE
MERANEERAME - RITEHRREE
RIRITERERRNOHREEZOT /L
B EBERTA -REMREFEYR
EERGEREREERL A FERES -

ENEZRRREMNREE
RBERR  HEZER/EEZEN
BEERZIREON  UERENREZ
SR

24,

25.

e

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED
BANK DEPOSITS (continued)

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
varying periods of between three months and one year, and
earn interest at the respective short term time deposit rates.
The bank balances and pledged bank deposits are deposited
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. The
carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents and the
pledged deposits approximate to their fair values.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, and the amount
of bills payable are as follows:

AEHE
Group
—EEhF —EENEF
2009 2008
AR® T AR T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
MHEA Within 90 days 47,390 107,572
91£180H 91 to 180 days 678 633
181E360H 181 to 360 days 10 636
1224 1to 2 years 60 391
2E3F 210 3 years - 23
48,138 109,255
BN =S Bills payable 34,000 51,980
82,138 161,235
ENESERARE - —HN30E120 The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally
RN - settled on 30 to 120 days terms.

P RN REHNOA NI -

MR2009F 12A31H » AEE BN RIE
BENANEERETYE - BEEEZE
ERBZRITBREET - FBHNWF
28(a) °

FHEREDERAT
STTAEEH

The bills payable will all mature within 90 days.

The Group's bills payable as at 31 December 2009 were
issued under banking facilities secured by certain property,
plant and equipment of the Group, details of which are set out
in note 28(a).
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26.

27.

o

ELEWA - ESFEFAREMENES 26, DEFERRED INCOME, ACCRUALS AND OTHER
PAYABLES
rE AT
Group Company
ZEBAE| ZZEENF| ZBBAE| ZZTENF
2009 2008 2009 2008
AREBTR | ARBT| AR®BTR| ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
IR U A Deferred income 806 806 - -
EstEHR Accruals 780 7,782 588 1,364
H fth & A 5K Other payables 25,024 42,237 167 209
26,610 50,825 755 1,573
HimENRBETHMER—RR—FRNE The other payables are non-interest-bearing and will generally
fF o mature within one year.
B WA 27. DEFERRED INCOME
BT %8 Bh Government grants
rxEH
Group
AR T T
RMB’000
72009128310 &
2010%F1B1H ZBRMEE  Carrying amount at 31 December 2009 and 1 January 2010 5,886
B 8B A (K 5E5) Amortised as income (note 5) (806)
200912 A31H 2 BR®{& Carrying amount at 31 December 2009 5,080
BELIELEWA « FEETEA  Current portion included in deferred income,
MEMERN R ZEIEES  accruals and other payables (806)
JEBIEREf Non-current portion 4,274

fisd B & T2 R 58 % W 32 1 BY K P A Y 7 1
PG EER - AIBUAmB e AE Q¥ E
R -BE#z A FEETARELR
ARB YHEFBEEERITRAFERA
UNEBEF 2 FEFRAD BREAZE K

1A IR B % B A B 2 AT 7 B PR MR B
BEXEMICCZEEREE L&k - K
BT 8 By s B H P 1B RS B £ & MLCC
ZERERBERBEE —IREN - ELE
1l B B (R -

FHEREDERAT
STTAEEH

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. The fair
value of the government grant is credited to a deferred income
account and is released to the statement of comprehensive
income over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by
equal annual instalments.

The government grants have been received from various
government authorities specifically for the purchases of
qualified plant and equipment in respect of the production of
MLCC. Except for the condition that the government grants
must be specifically used for the purchases of qualified plant
and equipment in respect of the production of MLCC, there
are no other conditions relating to these grants.
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28.

e

FFERITER INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS
wE Group
BERFHAE —EBhE | —ZTTN\F
Effective floating 8 A 2009 2008
interest rate Maturity RMB’000 RMB’000
0 Current
FEBRITER Interest-bearing bank loans
— B - secured 3.16% -5.31% 2009 - 2010 63,851 16,910
FHEHTEZRZ  Current portion of long term
AEIE 5 interest-bearing bank loans
— B - secured - 25,083
63,851 41,993
R Analysed into:
JEEE BIETTER ©  Interest-bearing bank loans
1R repayable: Within one year 63,851 41,993

AEBEZRITERRRITEEANATE
®

(@ ZAEBZEHEAFEHARE
89,810,000 7L (2008 & : A R #&§
75,434,0007T) 2 & TWHE - W E
MEE &

(b) AEBMETRITIERZEHEA
R #®4711,0007C( 20084F : AR
08 579,0007T) °

o RIEBER "B 2EEH
FHEBBANALAEBE TR EARE
30,000,000 T (20084 : &) 2 RITE K
REER -

AR M IRITEZDH AR 46,000,000
(2008 F 12 A31H : )M AR
17,851,000 7L (2008 F 12 A31H : AR
#£35,379,0007T) 7 Al LA A R # K T 51
B - R2008F 12 A31H & T 2 HEWHR
TERLH AREE,614,0007TABTTHIE -

RITEREHERLQNTERS -

FHEREDERAR
SETAEEH

The Group’s bank loans and bank facilities are secured by:

(a) certain property, plant and equipment of the
Group with a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB89,810,000 (2008: RMB75,434,000); and

(b) the pledge of certain of the Group’s bank deposits
amounting to RMB4,711,000 (2008: RMB28,579,000).

In addition, certain of the Group’s bank loans up to
RMB30,000,000 (2008: Nil) as at the end of the reporting
period have also been guaranteed by SZ Eycom, a related
party of the Group.

The secured bank loans of approximately RMB46,000,000
(81 December 2008: Nil) and RMB17,851,000 (31 December
2008: RMB35,379,000) are denominated in RMB and United
States dollars, respectively. The remaining secured bank loans
of approximately RMB6,614,000 as at 31 December 2008
were denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

The carrying amounts of the bank loans approximate to their
fair values.
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28. FTEETERGE)

o

28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS (continued)

REME(E) Group (continued)
REFBBUNTATE ZHRITHEE The Group has the following undrawn banking facilities:
—EEAF —EENF
2009 2008
AR® T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FE Floating rate
—1FAEm — expiring within one year 212,272 94,804
29. R=X 29. SHARE CAPITAL
“EBAE —ETN\F
2009 2008
AR®T R N
RMB’000 RMB’000
EE Authorised:
1,000,000,000% & % 1,000,000,000 ordinary shares
E{E0.01B L2 L@k of HK$0.01 each 10,000 10,000
BETRER Issued and fully paid
405,500,000/ (2008 12 A 405,500,000 (31 December 2008: 405,500,000)
31H : 405,500,000 ) ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
BREEOIE T LB 4,055 4,055
ARBTTEE Equivalent to RMB'000 3,824 3.824

FR - ARBEERCEITRAHE

FEARD -

SR EE)ARAA
“EEAFEH

There was no change in the authorised and issued capital of
the Company during the year.
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30.

T NF+=H=-+—H 31 December 2009

RS E

KNAFES —IBERESE(ZE
g AErEEEERNELERZ
GER2EERHERBERERK - ZaTE
ZRAERSEERE (@ AEBTAMK
BARMEMBRERZES 2B
HFBEE HEHEARCEZBAER
WAL () AREETRKEARNES
FREFEE(BEBYIENTESE):
C)ANEEEMKE RN EE N EER
B () AEBEMKERBNEY AR
HEER ) AEETAKERATNE
F Bl (B e8BM - Brm -
EEE - REBIREK  (HEAREBEFEM
B RRAIRERET i BB EM
TR I AER - B BEREMR
EOWALTRERE  R(Q)EMaTdA L
Ho BB A = o 25T &1/ 2007411 H30H
ER B IER S IEET - EEBEZ
HR10FRNB B -

RETEREZITHER BB HARITED
BOTEIERERBIEBETAEMTEE
BB ARITESNT A E M ERERET
FRAFETOERBRHEE T8
BARRNA) TR E TR A30% © BB
RIEZFTE A FEREOMRITERERES
SHE —LTFERAEERANR BERE
ME D BTRMI0% - BEFZTE - B
T+ =@ B8R - A 81T Pzt 8l
AERZ2EENGESRMEE LRAX
NATHEBEITRHOG 1% © i — F K%
LBz ERAEREEERENER
e EHE -

MARBESE THRAEHITERERR
RESEENEABEALROBERE
ARBUFRNTESTSERMERT AIE
17 o AN RER+ @A BE AR A
RATERRABUIATESTHKSE
MEMBEE AT T EMBERE - K
BBEARRE RS EITRMD0.1% X &
BRELBRARAROERTE) B
i#5,000,0008 T E - AfFBRERVBER AKX
G LEAHER T AIETT

FBRR(EEARAT
—BRAETH

30.

e

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include (a)
any proposed employee, any full-time or part-time employee,
or a person for the time being seconded to work full-time
or part-time for any member of the Group; (b) a director or
proposed director (including an independent non-executive
director) of any member of the Group; (c) a direct or indirect
shareholder of any member of the Group; (d) a supplier of
goods or services to any member of the Group; (e) a customer,
consultant, business or joint venture partner, franchisee,
contractor, agent or representative of any member of the
Group; (f) a person or entity that provides design, research,
development or other support or any advisory, consultancy,
professional or other services to any member of the Group;
and (g) an associate of any of the foregoing persons. The
Scheme became effective on 30 November 2007 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10
years from that date.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding share options granted and yet to
be exercised under the Scheme and any other share options
granted and yet to be exercised under any other schemes
shall not exceed 30% of the Company'’s issued share capital
from time to time. The maximum number of unexercised share
options currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme
is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to each
eligible participant in the Scheme within any 12-month period
is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is
subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the price of the Company’s shares at the date of
grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.
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30.

BRESTE(E)
BREBRENZEOAINEN B BRK28A
RNEARAXMTAEHIBITHORBEAR
BREGEM REZFIRLHOBEKR
BOTEHAARRESET IRE
TETHERRAK  MERBPIEER
T R It 2 40 B HIRE RT104F Sk at &l
EmEs (R P EE) -

BRENTEEHESEETE BETEE
R T=F0&RSEOARFRNOEE
(i RHBEREE B ARA R ERRM
B YT B ¢ R (i) B H A AT A (E
EEBARABRNDEBIMERRER
FIT ¥R B0 P9 B X PR T (B

BRI B TR A ABIRE S SN K
RRE LREMERN -

WRIEZL AT BIA T BRBERF AR ARITRE

30.

o

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
28 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted under the Scheme
is determinable by the directors of the Company, and
commences after a certain vesting period and ends on a date
which is not later than 10 years from the date of offer of the
share options or the expiry of the Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than whichever the highest of
(i) the nominal value of the Company’s shares; (ii) the Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the
date of grant of the share options; and (iii) the average Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the
Scheme during the year:

g —ETNF
2009 2008

TREESK TREER

B BT
Exercise price BREZE | Exercise price EREHAE
HK$ Number of HK$ Number of
per share options per share options

M A1E At 1 January 1.052 33,000,000 -
FRRE Granted during the year 1.052 - 1.052 40,000,000
i Cancelled 1,052 - 1.052 (600,000)
B UR Forfeited 1.052 (12,600,000) 1.052 (6,400,000)
R12831H At 31 December 20,400,000 33,000,000

FBRR(EEARAT
—BRAETH
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30.

RBEMRBRITEOBRENTEE

BBIREGT & (&)
RITHEEMT -
—BBAE
2009
BREHAR
Number of options
9,792,000
10,608,000*
20,400,000
—ETNF
2008
BREHE
Number of options
15,840,000
17,160,000*
33,000,000

FBRR(EEARAT
—BRAETH

TEE
BEREBT
Exercise price
HK$

per share

1.052

1.052

TEE
sRERT
Exercise price
HK$

per share

1.052

1.052

30.

e

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The exercise price and exercise periods of the share options
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:

TREM

Exercise period

2009F EENERH — 201711 A29H

2009 results announcement date — 29 November 2017
20104 /2011 F ¥ &N E B H — 2017911 A29R
2010/2011 results announcement date — 29 November 2017

TEH
Exercise period
2008F EENEHE — 2017411 A29R

2008 results announcement date — 29 November 2017
20094 20104 /2011 F £ E AL BH — 201711 A29H

2009/2010/2011 results announcement date — 29 November 2017
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30.

T NF+=H=+—H 31 December 2009

BIREST & (&)

* AIRITHREBITENERZESRA A
BEREENKEEE BN
™

EREABRDBHE R —BF 2B
BrfE - MmeaREEBHETAWABET
—RFRMNAFZ B BEIEGHITER
= BlERERERNG0% ~ 30% KX 10% °

WL BB RREmMmE - = F REF
Z B REBEHZE2008F12A31H [FF
[E 7 & F|zFFE LR E = 2007 F 12 A
S1HIEFEZIMADIR18% « NEEE
FE2009F12A31B It FE 2 & FEXF
FBLEEHE2008F12A318 IEFE
IR D A18% - KA EE £2010F
12A3MBIEFE 2 &FZFH R
H Z2009F 12 A31H L FEHEMT DR
18% * F A BE AT EARKE -

fif B R REEMBREFEER @ BB
PergfErl LA Bt B AR RU80% R IRTTIE o
RITEBBRAER TR R LA R4
EERFEENSERFRRITRE -

HE2009F12A31HILLFE - AEE
20084 & R F IR T 2 85 A% 1
R REFT 1,924,000 (SR A
R #1,695,0007T) (20084 : 5,442,000
JC 0 HER ARE4947,0000T) °

RFEBHR REZFTEERRAA
20,400,00013 RITE BB AL #E - BIBEBAR LD
AIIRITRRANER  BHEOESRTHE
% # #5 3 B %8 1 2 17 20,400,000 f% A8 A
A E @A - 180 B % 1T IR 48 204,000 %8
TC M & 7 i (B 21,257,000 7T (RT3 17
FsZ) °

R ETBRREH  BRIBEZFTE AR
7] 5 19,800,000 K 1T 1F fE % # - 15 A<
NARZHENB ETIRM #4.88% °

FBRR(EEARAT
—BRAETH

30.

o

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

* The number of share options that can be exercised
during the exercise periods is dependent on the
operating results of the Group, details of which are as
follows:

The share options may not be exercised on the first
anniversary of the date of grant and may be conditionally
exercised up to 60%, 30% and 10% of the total share options
on the second, third and fourth anniversaries of the date of
grant respectively.

The share options may only be fully exercised in the event
that the audited net profit of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2008 increases not less than 18% as compared
to that for the year ended 31 December 2007, the audited
net profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2009
increases not less than 18% as compared to that for the year
ended 31 December 2008 and the audited net profit of the
Group for the year ending 31 December 2010 increases not
less than 18% as compared to that for the year ended 31
December 2009 at the anniversary of the second, third and
fourth years respectively from the date of grant.

The share options may only be exercised up to 80% of
the share options as set out in the above in the event that
the above conditions are not met in the respective years.
The unexercised share options may be accumulated and
fully exercised in the next year in the event that the above
conditions are met in the respective years.

The Group recognised a share option expense of
HK$1,924,000 (equivalent to RMB1,695,000) (2008:
HK$5,442,000, equivalent to RMB4,947,000) during the year
ended 31 December 2009 for the share options granted in
2008 and vested during the year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
20,400,000 share options outstanding under the Scheme. The
exercise in full of the remaining share options would, under the
present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue
of 20,400,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company and
additional issued capital of HK$204,000 and share premium of
HK$21,257,000 (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 19,800,000 share options outstanding under
the Scheme, which represented approximately 4.88% of the
Company'’s shares in issue as at that date.
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3. HE—HBHWELQA

e

31. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

ZEEAF
2009
B 7% AR®BF R
Note RMB’000

BEHECEEFE Net assets disposed of:
mE - WEREE Property, plant and equipment 15 4,256
=& Inventory 40,657
FEUE 5 BR 3K Trade receivables 45,299
TERFRIE - Ze R HE M EKR Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 11,478
ReERBALEEY Cash and cash equivalents 32,617
DR ITIER Pledged bank deposits 8,177
Bl —HREE S MFRIE Due from a related party 44
ENESERLEMNEE Trade and bills payables (118,564)
FERHE A R H b B R Accruals and other payables (25,541)
R Provisions (3,741)
B — R BT FRIE Due to a related party (944)
(6,262)
& — BB ARz W Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 9,707
3,445

AT 313 3 A Satisfied by

Re Cash 3,445

tE—HEBAREHzZEeRESS
DM

BY M ERRITEFOFR

subsidiary is as follows:

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents
and pledged bank deposits in respect of the disposal of a

—EENF
2009
AR® T
RMB’000
RBeRE Cash consideration 3,445
BHEZHERESEEY Cash and cash equivalents and pledged
KB B IRITIER bank deposits disposed of (40,794)
PE—HNBEARERZzZRE Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents and pledged
FIRE&EE YN EIHF bank deposits in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary
R1T1F FOF M (37,349)

FHEREDERAR
“EEATEH
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o

32. f#& 32. RESERVES
(a &K (a) Group
REBRARNEERBEEEH The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
BEHELREBEH N BERER 243 movements therein for the current and prior years are
AREREEREY o presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity of the financial statements.
REBZEHBHRIE The contributed surplus of the Group represents:
(i) BEEEBSEADWENS (i) the difference of RMB203,536,000 being the
NAIZBRAHEHERESA excess of the nominal value of the shares and
BRI H AN A B Bt R A B contributed surplus of the subsidiaries acquired
TZBRhEEZEZEBAR pursuant to the group reorganisation over the
#:203,536,0007T : & nominal value of the Company’s shares issued
in exchange therefor; and
(i) H R EZF SR E WK (i) the deficit of RMB2,823,000 arising from the
BESFEMmMES Z &M acquisition of DG Eyang from the minority
AR #2,823,0007T ° shareholders of DG Eyang.
(b) ZEXQF (b)  Company
BRE EZ Bk
RHBRER i RBREE FERE
Share Share  EMB#% Exchange ZEFE  Proposed
Wi premium option Contributed  fluctuation Accumulated final @z
Notes account reserve surplus reserve losses  dividend Total
AREBTL ARETT ARETn ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR
RMB000 ~ RMB000 ~ RMB000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
R2008F1A1A At 1 January 2008 98,262 - 364,952 (237) (34,130) - 428,847
VTR RE  Issuance of new shares upon
mEFHER exercise of the
Over-allotment Option 6,395 - - - - - 6,395
EN2EBELE  Total comprehensive loss
for the year - - - (4,001) (8,790) - (12,791)
RELZERE  Equity-settled share option
T arrangements 0 - 4,947 - - - - 4,947
HHERE Share options cancelled - (168) - - 168 - -
M08 128318 Asat 31 Decerber 2008 104,657 4779 364,952 (4038)  (42752) - 4738
ER2EBBESE  Total comprehensive loss
for the year - - - (105) (4,562) - (4,667)
REZEERE  Equity-settled share option
ZH arrangements 30 - 1,695 - - - - 1,695
BB RE Share options forfeited - (1.677) - - 1677 -
BRERBRE Proposed final dividend - - - - (9,273) 9,273 -
20095126318 Asat 31 December 2009 104,657 4797 364,952 (4343)  (54910) 90273 424,426

FHEREDERAR
SETAEEH
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32. B (E)

(b)

AANT(E)
ARRIZEBBBRERESESE
HARMB AR ZIRE ZRAER
NAIDHTROEEZEE -

BREFEEERERLERRKT
FEOBRERFE  E—FFB
R MR 5E2.48 B IR 9 19 R
RPN EARROBL - 22
ENHEEREETERERE
BBl > XN HEERERE
ML ERERE G -

33. RMEHENRH

(a)

ERHAEA
AEERBELEHENLZHBELR
EYE(ME16) KW 2B
FHR-—FENFIF -

RImERR  AEEREEBES
IR NI AR 2 A A B
REMY ARRARRERER
mEEm

e

32. RESERVES (continued)

(b)

Company (continued)

The contributed surplus of the Company represents
the difference between the cost of investments in
subsidiaries pursuant to the group reorganisation and
the nominal value of the Company'’s shares issued.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of
share options granted which are yet to be exercised,
as further explained in the accounting policy for share-
based payment transactions in note 2.4 to the financial
statements. The amount will either be transferred to the
share premium account when the related options are
exercised, or be transferred to retained profits should
the related options expire or be forfeited.

33. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a)

As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 16)
under operating lease arrangements, with leases
negotiated for terms ranging from one to four years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
total future minimum lease receivables under non-
cancellable operating leases with its tenants falling due
as follows:

rEH

Group
—EEhEF —EENF
2009 2008
AR¥T T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
1F R Within one year 4,577 2,442

FoE54F In the second to fifth years, inclusive

(BEERE2F) 8,626 4,340
5% 1% After five years - 206
13,203 6,988

FHERGBE)ERAF

SETAEEH
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33. RKREMANZTH(E) 33. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued)
(b) EREAEA (b)  Aslessee

AEERBLEEHEVLHFERE
THELRRERYE - KB Z
MOFEHB2%F -

RBEHR > AEERER T
HREZBZ A REEEHY -
ERERMARARZEHESABLT :

The Group leases certain of its factory and office
premises under operating lease arrangements. Leases
for properties are negotiated for terms of two years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

rEH
Group
ZEEAF —EENEF
2009 2008
AR®BT AREBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
1F R Within one year 267 278
FofF In the second year 212 209
479 487
34. Ak 34. COMMITMENTS
Br | M 51 33(b) Pk 2 A% & HH A9 & iE In addition to the operating lease commitments as set out
Sy REBEHIR - AEE 2 EREREN in note 33(b) above, the Group had the following capital
N commitments at the end of the reporting period:
rEE
Group
—EEAE ZEENF
2009 2008
ARBT R ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EETHBREE Contracted, but not provided for:
EF Buildings 4,034 10,220
R N 2 Plant and machinery 15,556 401
wmEE Intangible assets - 536
19,590 11,157
35. FAERE 35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
AEBERARNARBMERRTESE Kk At the end of the reporting period, neither the Group nor the
REE - Company had any significant contingent liabilities.

FHEREDERAR
“EEATEH

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
Annual Report 2009

111



112

Br S ¥R AR MY RE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R-ZZEFEHE+ = A=+—H 31 December 2009

36. BELTXRZREH

(1)

e

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
REBRENEBEEIZEAZLSER The Group had the following material transactions with related
REHIREEE R 2 & WT - parties during the year and balances with related parties at

the end of the reporting period:
BRBEEZRS (1)  Recurring transactions
BERAR TH5MHE —EEAF —EENEF
Name of parties Nature of transactions 2009 2008
AR® T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REmABER BRZHXB
BRAA(TR=RB () WEzHEHA ()
Dongguan Guangtong Enterprise Rental income received from
Co., Ltd. ("DG Guangtong”) (i) DG Guangtong (a) 57 57
REmEBEE BR=REE
AR AF(TRERZE D (i) Wz e A (a)
Dongguan Deyang Industrial Rental income received from
Co., Ltd. (“DG Deyang”) (ii) DG Deyang (a) 36 36
w1 38 (i) A 7 JI=38 85 & MLCC(b) 657 -
SZ Eycom (iii) Sale of MLCC to SZ Eycom (b)
BARIMERK R ZHE WA (a)
Rental income received from
SZ Eycom (a) 181 -
B 3E - Notes:

FHERGBE)ERAF

“ETAEER

(i)

(iii)

REABIZBERRBARTRITE
FMERLLEZLBIELR

RRBZBRRARTARZBKER
BRELLZNS -

RIEBZZEBRRARATE
ERERELE BT REH
Fo ko

AEBERENILZHANRE
B9 E 2 RET L -

ZEZX TR ERTETT
BTABRAEERELBIEPR

B2 IR -

EERRLLARZEREER A
BEBBERET -

(i)

(iii)

The shareholders of DG Guangtong are the brother and sisters
of Mr. Chen Weirong, an executive director of the Company.

The shareholders of DG Deyang are the brothers of Ms. Luo
Zhanli, a shareholder of the Company.

The ultimate shareholders of SZ Eycom are Mr. Chen Weirong,
Ms. Shuang Mei and Mr. Liao Jie, directors of the Company.

The tenancy agreements entered into between the Group and
the related parties were based on mutually agreed terms.

The transactions were conducted in accordance with normal
commercial terms, which should be no less favourable than
those offered by the Group to its independent customers.

In the opinion of the directors, the above transactions
were carried out in the ordinary course of business of
the Group.
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36. BMEIXRZR&EHE)

o

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

(continued)
(2 *FEEXRS (2)  Non-recurring transactions
BELER REME —EENF —EENEF
Name of parties Nature of transactions 2009 2008
AR® T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RERB MR BEERESFHEITH ()
DG Guangtong Purchases of mobile phone
components from
DG Guangtong (c) 6,004 19,923
e MRZEEEEBESHFEITH ()
DG Deyang Purchases of mobile phone
components from
DG Deyang (c) 1,628 4,155
(c) BBFRTHERRINEBRFER (c) The purchases of mobile phone components were made by

BAEEHEAMRE - RBEL
RYVEBERRE S BEARRE -

B F5  ARBERFRITLERET
EITTHNRZS

(d) FAR AEBEAURBARK
3,444,850.85 7T A AN A 7] .2 B8 2 )5
BARELEANARIERZE
BB A AE (P EE12%31) -

(e) FIERALAEEETREAR
#30,000,0007T 2 $R 17 B 5K IE &
R (I 5E28) °

SR EE)ARAA
“ETAEER

SZ Eycom before its disposal by the Group during the year.
The purchase prices were mutually agreed between SZ Eycom
and the related parties.

In addition to the above transactions, the Group had the following
transactions with related parties during the year:

(d) During the year, the Group disposed of its entire equity interest
in SZ Eycom to Weichuang Investment, a related party of the
Company, for a consideration of RMB3,444,850.85 (notes 12
and 31).

(e) Certain of the Group’s bank loans up to RMB30,000,000 were
guaranteed by SZ Eycom (note 28).
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36.

¥

BELIRZRE®HE) 36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
(continued)
3) BEELHES (3)  Balances with related parties
—ETAF —ZEENF
2009 2008
ARMT T AR T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ElkRE Due from
RENRE DG Guangtong 1,716 -
REEERG DG Deyang 162 -
FINE R SZ Eycom 1,105 _
2,983 -
ENRE Due to
REENRB DG Guangtong - 10,307
REE DG Deyang - 1,903
- 12,210

(4)

METRKBRESNE B
B REBREENRY -Gk
B EmEREQFERS -

The balances with related parties are all trade in
nature, unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed
terms of repayment. The carrying amounts of these

balances approximate to their fair values.

TEETZEEEBAEZFMH (4) Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group
—EBEAF —EENEFE
2009 2008
AR®B T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
e KRR Salaries and allowances 2,025 2,252
RUKAE B 3K Retirement benefit contributions 82 93
R A 4 B RE AR AE B 2 Equity-settled share option expense 590 1,463
YTRNEEEEE Total compensation paid to key

A B 27 48 % management personnel 2,697 3,808

EFEME 2 FBHRN XIS -

SR EE)ARAA
“ETAEER

above.

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 8
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37

BEEREE B NRBR

AEBZTESRTAMTETARIN)
BREBRITERLBAS RRITHEER -
EESRTAZFEZRNIAAREEZ
REBEES - AEEHBEZHEEN
HEeBELCHEMEREERAE - 1
MEWE SRR  BNEZRALEN

B

AEBEMTASPERZIEZARRFE
Rk - SMNERR  EERBRERBDES
R EF@ERIHAEETESERR
R BEBRERMMT -

MEE R
AEEEHEOMENEEH AL TEE
AEEWMAFHNEZBEBEEBRHME
BEMERZEMERFHRERM -

AEBZRITEFRERMNX RERRH
PR 5 ¥R 2R M 7E28 ©

MERZEBAIEEEH0BMERIE AL
BRFRAZFNBRERTEEATE -

SMEE R B
AEBERHERRER - ZARBEE
BUNFEUZINEERE 2 EHETH
& BEIRITENKSE - AREFIR
TERFTLERINEEH  ERUBE
K 88 & A 7 B 48 1A 4 3208 S 3k 0 BROM
Bz &R AEERERZEER
B - AKBEHINERARFAIIEERE
BAAEEMEEZEB RS  tmk
MEXRRBEEHIEZE -

FBRR(EEARAT
—BRAETH

37

o

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than
derivatives, comprise interest-bearing bank loans and cash
and bank balances. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such
as trade receivables and trade and bills payables, which arise
directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s debt obligations with
floating interest rates and time deposits with fixed interest
rates which are short term.

The effective interest rates and terms of repayment of the
bank loans of the Group are set out in note 28 to the financial
statements.

A reasonably possible change of 50 basis points in interest
rates would have no material impact on the Group’s profit and
equity during the year.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales, purchases or bank loans by
operating units in currencies other than the units’ functional
currency. The Group entered into forward currency contracts
for bank loans and tends to accept foreign currency exchange
risk avoidance or allocation terms when arriving at purchase
and sales contracts to minimise its transactional currency
exposures. The Group takes rolling forecast on the foreign
currency revenue and expenses, matches the currency
and the amounts incurred, so as to alleviate the impact on
business due to exchange rate fluctuations.
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37

BBEREE B NRBERGE)

SE R B (48 )

TRINFEMEEMBERZRITE TETR
BEHRETL BLABEZEHZEX
& ¥ 3 A] RE & B ¥ K SR 18] 2 B B A A
EAKEZEzRNEBEERBERYF
BEEIMERZBEE -

rEH

37

POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued)

e

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end
of the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in
the United States dollar, Hong Kong dollar and Japanese
yen exchange rates, with all other variables held constant,
of the Group’s profit before tax and the Group’s equity due to

changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities.

Group
BRATEB A
AN,
(A 2)
#n/ Increase/  HEF
(HD) b= (decrease) (H2)*
Increase/ in profit Increase/
(decrease) before (decrease)
rate income tax in equity*
% ARBTT ARETR
% RMB’000 RMB'000
20094128311 31 December 2009
WETHARBEE  If United States dollar weakens against RMB (5) (42) 420
WBTHAR®EE  If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB (5) (1,888) (544)
HWEERAR®BE@E If Japanese Yen weakens against RMB (5) 1 (3)
WETELAREFE  If United States dollar strengthens against RMB 5 42 (420)
WATHEAR®BFAE  If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB 5 1,888 544
WEERXAREIE  If Japanese Yen strengthens against RMB 5 (1) 3
2008512A31H 31 December 2008
WETHARKEE  If United States dollar weakens against RMB (5) 602 (52)
BT ARBE(E I Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB (5) (1,785) 168
MABEARKEE  If Japanese Yen weakens against RMB (5) 176 (4)
METHARBFE  If United States dollar strengthens against RMB 5 (602) 52
WATHEAR®BFAE  If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB 5 1,785 (168)
HWEEEARBHE  If Japanese Yen strengthens against RMB 5 (176) 4
* TEEREEF .

FHEREDERAR
SETAEEH

Excluding retained profits
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BEEREE B NRBERGE)

FERR

KB ZEREAENAEESREE
A ZRAGERR AEBEZHRE
BRAAERFEELHEZEPHE I
SEERERREEZERR - AEERA
EEMAEZRBRIL TEKX -

ERASEHEpSREE(HTERER
SRR FEYREMELRT) 2EFE
Rk DR TEAMEL - LRASE
NRETMEEZKRAE -

AEBEEBRERHBEREEAISRZ
FNETRS - HRAKERKE S
ERHREDHRTRAEERTEZE
FARK AEEALTEBZEETZEER
[\ B o

FRAEEREREZEIMELZZ
ERBZEMEAEE R ST HR
KMt sFooh HEE -

RBETER
AEBERBRRADESTEH TAER
HESHEREAR HTAZEESRT
ARemEE(NEBYE S KRR 22 H
ARBEAEEZHETRE -

AEEZBRRREFARREREAESSE
BY MEBRTEFNENEZESR

i °

FHEREDERAR
SETAEEH

37

o

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

The carrying amount of the trade receivables represents the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its
financial assets. The Group has a policy in place to ensure that
sales are made to customers with an appropriate credit history
and to closely monitor the collection of the trade receivables
on an ongoing basis. The Group’s exposure to bad debts is
not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents and other receivables,
arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these financial
assets.

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. There are no significant concentrations of credit risk
within the Group as the customer bases of the Group’s trade
receivables are widely dispersed.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note
22 to these financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial assets
(e.g., trade receivables) and projected cash flows from
operations.

The Group’s policy is to maintain sufficient cash and cash
equivalents and have available funding through bank loans to
meet its working capital requirements.
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37 BREREEBECZBENRBEE) 37  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)
RBESRARE) Liquidity risk (continued)

RBERAR  AEERARAZERE
BEREFTORMBEFAZZRBERNOT

The maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company’s financial
liabilities as at the end of the reporting period, based on the

contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

KE Group
—EEBNF
2009
DPR—F
RERE Less than —FE Bk Fo
On demand 1 year Over 1 year Total
ARBTR AR®TR AR®TR AR%®TrR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TERITER Interest-bearing bank loans - 65,294 - 65,294
ERESERK Trade and bills payables
J& 1 =A% - 82,138 - 82,138
H b FE A 3 & Other payables and
&=t & A accruals - 24,724 1,080 25,804
1 18 - 172,156 1,080 173,236
—EENEF
2008
LR —F
R E R Less than —FUE #Et
On demand 1 year Over 1 year Total
ARETT ARETRT AR®TRT AR®TE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FERITER Interest-bearing bank loans - 43,538 - 43,538
ERESERK Trade and bills payables
ANEE - 161,235 - 161,235
HAib ER R & Other payables and
fEETE A accruals - 50,019 - 50,019
BT EE & 5 A Due to related parties 12,210 - - 12,210
12,210 254,792 - 267,002

FHEREDERAR
“EEATEH
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BEEREE B NRBERGE)

37

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

RBESRARE) Liquidity risk (continued)
b NN Company
—EENF
2009
PR—F
RERE Less than @t
On demand 1 year Total
ARB TR AR¥T T AR¥T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
HiE R & Other payables and
EEtEA accruals - 755 755
FERT M B A T FIE  Due to subsidiaries 8,609 - 8,609
8,609 755 9,364
—EENF
2008
LR —F
N E SR Less than 4=t
On demand 1year Total
AR T T ARETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
H b A 5 % Other payables and
EEtE R accruals - 1,573 1,573
FEATF B A FFE  Due to subsidiaries 8,623 - 8,623
8,623 1,573 10,196

EXER

REBEAERB s, TEENEBMREAS
BB rENERRENERL X -
N HEBITERRREB 2 HZAL °

AEEEBEEEAGEBITRECEMRD
BEYUEEL AR BABHAHBREAR
EE o AEEKTFAEEHREIKRES
- MBREREERNRBITHRG - #H
20094 2008 12A31HILEE - &
BEAZER HENBFITESSE -

FHEREDERAR
“EEATEH

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008.
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38.

39.

MHEEREEZBNRBEGE)

EXEEE)

AEBUNEERBLRERELN  BE
BELXNEHFERAEARN EER
BB FBURTER  BNES
AR N B R A AN BURR & M
ReEEYAE - BEXNESRREAA
ZIEEED  ARBEZHEREBEER
BLHEERFESEZKFLE RERE

37

e

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by capital plus net debt. Net debt is calculated
as the sum of bank loans, trade and bills payables, and other
payables less cash and cash equivalents. Capital represents
equity attributable to owners of the parent. The Group’s policy
is to keep the gearing ratio at a reasonable level. The gearing
ratios as at the ends of the reporting periods are as follows:

HRvEEBBLENT :
—EEhE —EENF
2009 2008
AR¥E T AR T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEIRITER Interest-bearing bank loans 63,851 41,993
ENEZERKLEMZERE  Trade and bills payables 82,138 161,235
H At & A 5K Other payables 25,024 42,237
B RERBEEEY Less: Cash and cash equivalents (note 24)
(P 5E24) (61,162) (131,705)
109,851 113,760
B 758 Net debt 109,851 113,760
UNCIEZ RN Equity attributable to owners of the parent
JRE 115 7 2 410,095 388,663
T N B F A Equity and net debt 519,946 502,423
BEBMRLUE Gearing ratio 21% 23%
HREHE 38. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS
PERELEBRERTDBERRNAREFEK LKL The comparative statement of comprehensive income has
BECEBRERAYIERIELEMERN been re-presented as if the operation discontinued during the
2R(MHE12) © current year had been discontinued at the beginning of the
comparative period (note 12).
S & 39. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BEHRRDIN2010F4A16HEES S
HE o N 1524 B o

FHEREDERAT
“EEATEH

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 16 April 2010.
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Annual Report 2009
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